it

AGENDA

City of Lucas
City Council Meeting
March 2, 2017

7:00 PM

City Hall — Council Chambers
665 Country Club Road - Lucas, Texas

Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, March 2, 2017 at
7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda
will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene
into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item
on the agenda at any time during the meeting.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Determination of Quorum

Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones
Pledge of Allegiance

Citizen Input
The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.
By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to
speak at the City Council meeting. However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council
cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion
on a future agenda.

1. Citizens’ Input (Mayor Jim OIk)

Community Interest
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1)
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6)
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety.

2. Items of Community Interest.

Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and provide
guidance to City Staff and City Attorney. (City Manager Joni Clarke)




Consent Agenda

3. Consider approval of the minutes of the February 16, 2017 City Council meeting. (City
Secretary Stacy Henderson)

Presentations

4.  Presentation and discussion from Lovejoy High School and Willow Springs Middle School
students participating in the Lovejoy ISD Independent Studies Program: (Mayor OIKk)

e  Catherine Wilson — Willow Springs Middle School - Equine Therapy
o Lindsay Haden — Lovejoy High School - Child Behavior and Weather

Public Hearing

5. Consider the 2017 Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lucas including the Sewer Master

Plan Map, Water System Map, Thoroughfare Plan Map, and Land Use Map: (Development
Services Director Joe Hilbourn)

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn

B. Conduct Public Hearing

C. Take action regarding adopting Ordinance 2017-03-00850 approving the 2017
Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lucas including the Sewer Master Plan Map,
Water System Map, Thoroughfare Plan Map, and Land Use Map

Regular Agenda

6. Discuss and consider water projects and funding strategy to fund design and construction:
(Councilmember Wayne Millsap, Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster)

A) Water Fund projects for consideration and prioritization:

1. Elevated Water Tower, Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch
Connection and Pressure Regulating Valves

Parker Road Waterline Phase 2 (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa Fe Trail)
Parker Road Waterline Phase 3T (From Santa Fe Trail to Stinson Road)
Replace three existing pumps at the North Pump Station

Add new pump house at the North Pump Station with three 500 GPM pumps
Any additional water projects that Council may determine

Uk wN

B) Discuss funding strategies including using unencumbered line item balances in the
Capital fund, unrestricted Water Fund reserves and work with SAMCO Financial
Advisors on the Notice of Intention Resolution to issue Certificates of Obligation and
provide guidance to staff on the specified amount required to fund the water system
projects.




7. Discuss and consider roadway projects, determine priority and funding strategy to fund

design and construction: (Councilmember Wayne Millsap, Public Works Director/City Engineer
Stanton Foerster)

A) General Fund roadway projects for consideration and prioritization:

Winningkoff Rd Reverse Curve (design funded in FY 16/17)
Stinson Rd/W. Lucas Rd Intersection (design funded in FY 16/17)
Country Club Road/Estates Parkway Intersection

Winningkoff Road (Reverse Curve to Snider Lane)

Stinson Road South of Bridge

Blondy Jhune Road (West Bridge to Winningkoff Road)

Stinson Road North of Bridge (middle section)

Winningkoff Road (E. Lucas Rd to Reverse Curve)

Any additional roadway projects that Council may determine.

CoNo~WNE

B) Discuss funding strategy including using unencumbered line item balances in the
Capital fund, unrestricted General Fund reserves and work with SAMCO Financial
Advisors on the Notice of Intention Resolution to issue Certificates of Obligation
and provide guidance to staff on the specified amount required to fund the roadway
projects.

Executive Session
The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government
Code.

8. Executive Session: The City Council may enter into Executive Session as permitted under
the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease
or value of real property within the City of Lucas.

9. Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive
Session.

10.  Adjournment.

Certification

I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin
board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us
on or before 5:00 p.m. on February 24, 2017.

Stacy Henderson, City Secretary

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations
for persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be
directed to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@Ilucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting.



City of Lucas
City Council Agenda Request
My March 2, 2017

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

IAgenda Item]

Citizens’ Input

IBackground Information: |

NA

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:]

NA

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:]

NA

NA

Item No. 01



Item No. 02

City of Lucas
M’M Council Agenda Request
March 2, 2017

Requester:  City Manager Joni Clarke

IAgenda Item]

Items of Community Interest:

Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85th Legislature and provide
guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.

IBackground Information:|

NA

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:]

NA

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:]

NA

NA



City of Lucas Item No. 03

Council Agenda Request
Ay March 2, 2017

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson

IConsent Agenda Items:]

3. Consider approval of the minutes of the February 16, 2017 City Council meeting. (City
Secretary Stacy Henderson)

IBackground Information:|

NA

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:]

1. Minutes of the February 16, 2017 City Council meeting

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:|

City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.

I make a motion to approve/deny the Consent Agenda as presented.



City of Lucas
M‘M City Council Meeting
February 16, 2017
7:00 P.M.
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road — Lucas Texas

Minutes

Call to Order

Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

City Councilmembers Present: Staff Present:

Mayor Jim Olk City Manager Joni Clarke

Councilmember Wayne Millsap City Attorney Joe Gorfida

Councilmember Tim Baney City Secretary Stacy Henderson

Councilmember Steve Duke Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn
Councilmember Philip Lawrence Executive Assistant/Special Projects Coordinator Cathey
Councilmember Debbie Fisher Bonczar

City Councilmember Absent:
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present. Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence
their cell phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Citizen Input

1.  Citizen Input.

There was no citizen input.

Community Interest

2.  Community Interest Items.

Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 85" Legislature and provide
guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.

There was no discussion regarding particular items being considered by the 85" Legislature. City
Attorney Joe Gorfida asked to let him know should there be any House Bill or Senate Bill the
Council would like to watch more closely.

Consent Agenda

3.  Consider approval of the minutes of the January 26, 2017 Town Hall meeting.

l1|Page City Council
February 16, 2017



4.  Consider approval of the minutes of the February 2, 2017 City Council meeting.

5.  Consider approving a Proclamation declaring March 19-25, 2017 as Poison Prevention
Week.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Councilmember Fisher to approve the
Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimonsly by a 6 to 0 vote.

Regular Agenda

6. Consider the provision of residential and commercial solid waste collection/disposal,
recycling related services including curbside residential recycling and e-
waste/household hazardous waste removal, residential bulk/brush/yard waste
collection services.

A. Receive a presentation from Community Waste Disposal (CWD) regarding waste
and recycling programs that are available to the City of Lucas including:

e Solid waste residential collection

e Solid waste commercial collection and the provision of dumpsters

¢ Recycling services including e-waste/household hazardous
waste/household metal appliances options/green waste programs

¢ Residential bulk/brush/yard waste collection setvices

B. Provide direction to staff regarding the types of refuse-related services to be
provided to the citizens of Lucas and the process to consider in acquiring a
provider for those services and the negotiation of contract with selected
contractor.

Greg Roemer, President of Community Waste Disposal discussed the history of their company,
their recycling program and the 19 communities that currently use their recycling program. He
stated the company did not use diesel trucks and discussed the various services that were available to
the City of Lucas Mr. Roemer stated that he would propose recycling pickup occur once a week,
with residents using a 95-gallon cart for curbside pickup or blue recycle bags. Two cubic yards of
bulky items would be picked up weekly, and household hazardous waste items such as paints,
pesticides, fertilizers and batteries would be collected twice per year.

Councilmember Fisher asked how many routes CWD proposed for Lucas.

Mr. Roemer stated routes would be run Monday, Tuesday and Thursday for trash pickup and every
other week on Wednesdays for recycling.

The Council briefly discussed with Mr. Roemer the factors that would go into providing a price on
the cost for services. Mr. Roemer stated such things as the type of service provided; trash, recycling
or both, the number of collection times per week and the size of the city would be considered.

The Council discussed the asphalt roadways in Lucas and the size and weight of collection vehicles
that would be used to pick up trash.

2|Page City Council
February 16, 2017




Mr. Roemer stated that their trash collection trucks were 20-yard single axle trucks with a 33,000-
gross vehicle weight.

The Council was in agreement that they would like Community Waste Disposal to bring back a
proposal for both trash and recycling services.

Mayor Olk also asked that Barnes Waste Disposal review their existing contract and bring back a
proposal as well.

This item was for discussion purposes only, no formal action was taken.
7. Discuss moving the 2017 Founders Day event to April 14, 2018.

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a brief presentation discussing the need to move
the Founders Day event due its close proximity to the Country Christmas event and the lack of
volunteers that are able to assist.

Councilmember Fisher discussed her concerns relating to moving the event to April, as it was close
to the City’s May general election, which could be used to politicize the event.

The Council discussed political signage on public property and State law requirements that limited
where and for how long political signage could be erected.

Mayor Olk read an email received from Rebecca Mark, Volunteer Coordinator for the Founders
Day event. Ms. Mark noted her difficulty in scheduling volunteers for the Founders Day event, the
limited time that separated the Founders Day event from the Country Christmas event, and was in
favor of moving the event to the spring.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmentber Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Dufke to approve
moving Founders Day to April 14, 2018. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.

8. Discuss and provide feedback to staff regarding the City’s annual Keep Lucas
Beautiful Clean Up event scheduled for April 22, 2017.

Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a brief presentation discussing details of the
cleanup event noting the following streets that would be included for cleanup as part of the event:

*  West Lucas Road from FM 1378 to Angel Parkway

e Stinson Road from West Lucas Road to Parker Road
* Lewis Lane from West Lucas Road to Parker Road

* Estates Road from Angel Parkway to 1378

* Blondy Jhune Road from 1378 to Winningkoff Road
* Brockdale Park and Highland Park

Mr. Hilbourn stated that for the safety of the volunteers, Blondy Jhune and Stinson Roads would be
closed for the event, and that Staff would be closing Snider Lane from Shady Lane to East Lucas

Road to through traffic during the cleanup event from 9:00 am until 12:00 pm.

This item was for discussion purposes only, no action was taken.

3|Page City Council
February 16, 2017



9. Discussion regarding Article IV, Section 3 of the Friends of the Lucas Fire-Rescue,
Inc., Bylaws regarding appointment of the Board of Directors and take action to
reappoint Kathleen LoSapio and Linda Abston for a two-year term beginning March
1, 2017 through March 1, 2019.

Councilmember Millsap, liaison to the Friends of the Lucas Fire-Rescue, Inc., discussed the history
of the board, its 501C3 organization status, and its current membership. Councilmember Millsap
noted that the board has been operating for approximately one year, had plans in place for
fundraising, and recommended the board be allowed to amend their bylaws to appoint their own
membership from this point forward. Councilmember Millsap also noted that board members
Kathleen LoSapio and Linda Abston were interested in being reappointed for two year terms.

The City Council was in agreement the board be allowed to change provisions in their bylaws and
appoint their own members. City Attorney Joe Gorfida noted that since the board was separate and
apart from the City of Lucas, the bylaws did not have to come back before the City Council to be
amended.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmentber Lawrence to
reappoint Kathleen LoSapio and Linda Abston for two-year terms beginning March 1, 2017
through March 1, 2019. The motion passed unanimonsly by a 6 to 0 vote.

10. Consider setting the date of July 27, 2017 for the 2017-2018 budget workshop session.

The City Council discussed various dates for the budget workshop session and decided upon
hosting their budget workshop session on July 13, 2017 at 6:00 pm.

Executive Session

The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government
Code.

11. The City Council may enter into Executive Session as permitted under the Texas
Government Code, Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property within the City of Lucas.

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 7:56 pm.

12. Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the
Executive Session.

The City Council reconvened from Executive Session at 8:17 pm. There was no action taken as a
result of the Executive Session.

4|Page City Council
February 16, 2017




13. Adjournment.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Dufke, seconded by Councilmember Baney to adjonrn the
meeting at 8:18 pm. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.

APPROVED: ATTEST:
Jim Olk, Mayor Stacy Henderson, City Secretary
5|Page City Council

February 16, 2017



Item No. 04

City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request
March 2, 2017

ol

Requester:  Mayor Jim Olk

IAgenda Item]

Presentation and discussion from Lovejoy High School and Willow Springs Middle School
students participating in the Lovejoy ISD Independent Studies Program:

e Catherine Wilson — Willow Springs Middle School - Equine Therapy
e Lindsay Haden — Lovejoy High School - Child Behavior and Weather

IBackground Information:|

As part of the Lovejoy ISD Independent Studies Program, students from Lovejoy High School and
Willow Springs Middle School are required to present their project of interest to a public audience
and have asked if they may present their reports to the City Council. This is the third year in a row
that the students of Lovejoy High School and the first-year students from Willow Springs Middle
School will be sharing their presentations with the City Council.

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:|

NA

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:]

NA

NA



City of Lucas Iltem No. 05
City Council Agenda Request
March 2, 2017

oy

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn

IAgenda Item]

Consider the 2017 Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lucas including the Sewer Master Plan
Map, Water System Map, Thoroughfare Plan Map, and Land Use Map:

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn

B. Conduct Public Hearing

C. Take action regarding adopting Ordinance 2017-03-00850 approving the 2017
Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lucas including the Sewer Master Plan Map, Water
System Map, Thoroughfare Plan Map, and Land Use Map

IBackground Information:|

The process to update the City’s Comprehensive Plan began in 2015 with staff bringing each
chapter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council requesting feedback. Staff
has incorporated amendments recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City
Council into the updated 2017 Comprehensive Plan.

There is no state law that requires a City to have a Comprehensive Plan; however, if a City
would like to enforce zoning it is required to have an adopted Comprehensive Plan that is
updated periodically. The Comprehensive Plan is a long-range planning tool that is intended to
be used by the City to guide growth and development of the community for the future. The
Comprehensive Plan was first adopted in 1980, and as the City developed, the Plan was updated
with the last update occurring in 2004. The goal of this update is to continue to make long-range
plans for the community of Lucas and incorporate the necessary revisions to help guide the
City’s development based on the vision of its citizens.

The Comprehensive Plan is required to be adopted following two public hearings. Public
hearings for adoption of the amended Comprehensive Plan took place before the Planning and
Zoning Commission on February 9, 2017 with the second public hearing and request for
approval coming before the City Council on March 2, 2017.

Remaining items for consideration by the City Council includes future zoning for the four
residential properties adjacent to the high school fronting Estates Parkway, and if East
Winningkoff Road should be a through street or a dead end on the Thoroughfare Plan. (See
Planning and Zoning Commission recommendations on the next page.)



City of Lucas Iltem No. 05
City Council Agenda Request
March 2, 2017

oy

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:|

Ordinance 2017-03-00850 adopting the Comprehensive Plan
Updated Comprehensive Plan

Wastewater System Master Plan Map

Water System Map

Thoroughfare Plan Map

Existing Land Use Map

Proposed Land Use Map A

NogakowdnpE

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:]

The Planning and Zoning Commission approved the Comprehensive Plan by a 3 to 2 vote. The
Commission was in favor of allowing Village Center zoning for the four lots adjacent to the high
school fronting Estates Parkway. However, two members were not in favor of creating a dead
end on East Winningkoff Road.

I make a motion to adopt Ordinance 2017-03-00850 approving the 2017 Comprehensive Plan for
the City of Lucas including the Sewer Master Plan Map, Water System Map, Thoroughfare Plan
Map, and Land Use Map.



ORDINANCE 2017-03-00850
[APPROVAL OF 2017 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN]

M‘M AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ADOPTING A NEW
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO SERVE AS A GUIDE FOR ALL FUTURE
CITY COUNCIL ACTION CONCERNING LAND USE AND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas and the governing
body of the City of Lucas in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the City Charter and
Ordinances of the City of Lucas, have given requisite notice by publication and otherwise, after
holding due hearings and affording a full and fair hearing to all persons interested, and in the exercise
of its legislative discretion in the best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the
City of Lucas, have concluded that a new comprehensive plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated herein by reference, should be adopted;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. That the City of Lucas shall and does hereby adopt the “2017 Comprehensive
Plan of the City of Lucas, Texas” which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. The 2017 Lucas
Comprehensive Plan shall and does hereby serve as the master plan for the physical development of
the City to provide recommendations for the growth, development and beautification of the City and
its extraterritorial jurisdiction. The 2017 Comprehensive Plan shall also serve as the master plan of
the City as a guide to all future city council action concerning land use and development regulations.
Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit amendments to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan by simple
majority vote except as may otherwise be required by law.

Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of
said Ordinances that are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section
of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions
of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain
in full force and effect.

Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed
by prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose.

City of Lucas
Ordinance 2017-03-00850 Approval of 2017 Comprehensive Plan
Approved: March 2, 2017 -1-



Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is accordingly
so ordained.

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS,

COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS DAY OF , 2017.
APPROVED:
Jim Olk, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney Stacy Henderson, City Secretary

(02-22-2017/84037)

City of Lucas
Ordinance 2017-03-00850 Approval of 2017 Comprehensive Plan
Approved: March 2, 2017 -2-






LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN




LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

= e
[ABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

POPULATION

HOUSING

"HAPTER 4  LAND USE

CHAPTER 5 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 19

CHAPTER 6 = PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE-- 24

CHAPTER 7  STREETS AND DRAINAGE 30

CHAPTER 8  WAITER SYSTEM 40

&APPENDIX



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

INTRODUCTION

PURPOSE

The comprehensive plan can be defined as a long-range planning tool that is intended
to be used by city staff, decision-makers and citizens to guide the growth and physical
development of a community for its future growth. The original plan adopted in the
late 1980's initiated the framework for the City of Lucas. Over the years it has been
reviewed and updated as growth dictated. Having this comprehensive framework will
assist in evaluating proposed actions, decisions concerning changes in local economic
and demographic conditions, and resources, as well as guiding future planning
scenarios for Lucas.

The State of Texas has established laws that specifically regulate the way incorporated
cities such as Lucas can ensure the health, safety, and welfare of their citizens. It gives
them the power to regulate the use of land, but only if such regulations are based on a
comprehensive plan. Lucas strives to guide future development to accommodate new
development without sacrificing the unique character of the city.

In basic terms, the primary objectives of a comprehensive plan are to:

e Manage growth in an orderly manner,
e Minimize potential conflicts between land uses,
e Provide for efficient and cost-effective delivery of public services, and

e [Establish a rational and reasonable basis for making decisions about the
community.

This updated version of the comprehensive plan will address the preservation of the
country atmosphere of Lucas by addressing the growth and future needs relating to
population, housing, land use, economic development, parks, streets, drainage, water,
thoroughfares, and capital improvements.

LOCATION

Lucas is located in Collin County just northeast of the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex,
30 miles north of downtown Dallas. The City is positioned 10 miles east of the DART
Parker Road Station, 30 miles north of the Love Field Airport, and 40 miles east of the
Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport. Lucas is bordered by the City of Allen to the
west, the City of Parker to the southwest, the City of Wylie to the south, the City of St.
Paul to the southeast, Lake Lavon to the east, and the City of Fairview to the
northwest as shown in figures 1.1 and 1.2.

The population is estimated at 6,875 in 2016 and contains a total land area of 9.85
acres.

Page 4



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The City has experienced significant o -0
growth in recent years as a result of : d B XYL - S
its unique features including: 3 <\ ‘ *
‘ LUCAS
e Appealing rural atmosphere S | iy, ~ops 37 L i
e Animal friendly neighborhoods Ol S e ] Qi i L Sl
e Exceptional educational systems o\ | Ppee Tl / LL]
e Proximity to services and shopping s %G ,. Qi
e Low crime rate wmiendeFort Werth7-0=— e i 4 . g ok
e High quality housing _ Sy S o ol A Z
o Large lot sizes > > b e e =
e Proximity to Lake Lavon : . coughes ) o O
Figure 1.1—City of Lucas and Dallas/ Fort Worth Metroplex:

The City of Lucas' location, outside
the pressures and restrictions of
intense urban life, combined with its
convenient position relative to local
and regional economic and
recreational centers, makes the City a
stable and attractive community.

FAIRVIEW

W LUCAS RD

g
F
z
PARKER &
T \u
. =
FM 2314 E PARKERRD FM 2314
PARKER RD
g
2
&
- SAINT PAYL
LEGEND 5]
EICITY OF LUCAS & i
—ETS £ =
=Principal Arterial Road § a

Figure 1.2—City of Lucas, Texas

Page 5



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

POPULATION

One of the most important parameters of the planning process is the analysis
and projection of the population. The purpose of projecting population is to
provide a general scale for future development which is compatible with the
prospects and the potentials of the city.

Population growth is primarily driven by construction of new housing and the
annexation of land.

The population estimates reported in this plan are based on the US Census
Bureau, the North Central Texas Council of Governments Databases on
Demographics, and other State agencies. Over the next 25 years the North
Central Texas population is expected to grow by 5 million people. It is
assumed the City of Lucas will also experience significant growth if the local and
regional economies remain stable.

After estimating the size and density of the future population, it becomes possible to
determine the future level of demand for facilities, and to develop indices for issues
which typically confront those persons who are actively involved in making decisions
related to the planning process.

Projected population demand is the rational basis for projecting infrastructure needs,
and establishing the timing of capital expenditures.

POPULATION TRENDS

The population of Lucas has increased dramatically from 540 in 1970 to 6,875 in 2016.
This represents an annual growth rate of 5.69%. This is a reflection of the desire of
many people to live in a rural or "small town" environment while keeping close to
major urban centers. Continued population growth in Lucas is supported by forecast
data for Collin County. The population of Collin County is expected to increase by
almost 54 percent by 2035. The age composition of the Lucas population provides a
profile, illustrating when and where the greatest need for various types of public
expenditures will be required in order to meet citizen demand.

POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Population projections provide the most basic planning assumptions required for
strategically meeting future public needs. Six significant assumptions specific to
Lucas help form the basis from which to project the populations, and are listed
below:

1. The density and character of development in Lucas will not change appreciably.

2. Lucas will experience in-migration from larger urban areas causing the local
population to increase.

Page 6



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

3. The average household size will remain 3.22 persons per household.

4. Population can be estimated based on the number of existing houses; the
calculation of potential number of houses that can be built on developable land
based on projected future land use, and subdivision of land tracts.

5. The City of Lucas is estimated to be built out in 2030. Based upon all the foregoing
assumptions, future population projections for both Lucas and the area within the
extra-territorial jurisdiction (ET]) are shown in table 2.1 and illustrated in figure 2.2.

0. Whether the projected population occurs five years early or five years later, the city
will require the same number of facilities for the projected number of people.

The anticipated population growth will place additional burdens on the City’s

TWO

vaw | YIS | PN | G | POPUEATION | s | PERNT | Gy

ONLY) RATE &ET)) RATE
2016 6,875 N/A N/A 2247 912 N/A N/A
220 7,805 148% 35% 3,296 11,191 2% 52%
A5 9,704 2%% 42% 4700 14404 BT% 5.2%
2030 11,165 15.1% 28% 5711 16,876 17.2% 32%
“Taabke 2.1- Gty of L swas Popwilation Prostions

infrastructure and resources:

e Streets

e Water and wastewater system (waste water serves non-residential uses only)
e Parks and recreational facilities

e Environmental, educational, safety and health services

Lucas should set goals for both the
desired population levels and facilities
necessary to accommodate the resulting 17,000

19,000 Figure 2.2- Lucas Population Projections

demands. Most of these topics will be 16,876
. . . 15,000
discussed in the following chapters of
. . . 14,404
this Comprehensive Plan. 13,000
11,000 ___——
11,191 """ 11,165
9,000 ' — 0,
s 9,704
7,000 7,895
6,875
5,000
2016 2020 2025 2030
—8— POPULATION WITHIN THE CITY LIMIT ONLY - POPULATION INCLUDING ETJ

Page 7



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

HOUSING

INTRODUCTION

There are four generally recognized determinants of the level of effective demand for
housing units as follow:

1. The physical sources of housing demand which includes the number of type of
family units in an area and the need for replacing existing units.

2. 'The level of wealth in an area and the distribution of that income.

3. Mortgage rates.

4. 'The supply price of housing which is the cost of providing the residents of an area
with appropriate housing facilities.

The complex interaction of these four considerations works to determine whether or
not adequate housing of the appropriate types is available to the residents of Lucas.

EXISTING HOUSING ANALYSIS

As of June 1, 2016 there were 2111 single family housing units in Lucas. There are an
additional 24 other forms of housing units in Lucas which could be classified as
housing in a non- or semi--permanent structure. Within the Lucas extra territorial
jurisdiction there are 697 units, bringing the total housing in Lucas and the ETJ to
2,832 units.

e Single family 2111 units

e Semi or non-permanent housing 24 units
e Single family 697 units

e Total 2,832 units

HOUSING GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Although Lucas will add new dwelling units through new construction, existing units
must be adequately maintained in order to meet the local housing demand and foster
a stable housing environment. It should be assumed that all housing and properties
within the community are maintained in a reasonable (or sound), safe and sanitary
condition for its useful life. To enable the city to direct its efforts in develop housing
with the highest and best use, the following specific goals and objectives should be
followed:

GOAL 1.
Encourage suitable development of land with adequate lot sizes, paved streets and
utility lines.

Objectives:

e Hstablish and maintain subdivision ordinances to ensure that new infrastructure
meets or exceeds minimum city requirements.

e FEncourage high-quality construction through the continued enforcement of
recognized building codes.

Page 8



LUCAS COMPR

EHENSIVE PLAN

e Alleviate maintenance and service issues by upgrading existing infrastructure
(water, streets and drainage) to meet or exceed minimum acceptable standards.

GOAL 2.

A sufficient choice of adequate housing should be provided to meet the needs of

individuals.

Obijectives:

e Zone land to promote long-term neighborhood stability.

e Maintain moderate density housing in suitable locations on the periphery of the

city.
FUTURE HOUSING REQUIREMENTS

To provide an indication of the future demand for
housing in Lucas, it is necessary to project the s
number of housing units which will be needed. s
These projections are based upon the assumption s
that the average household size would remain at 3.22 00
persons during the planning period. Allowing for a

five percent vacancy rate, and reflecting anticipated

future population levels, the future total housing .,
needs for Lucas are estimated and illustrated in

Figure 3.1. Lucas should encourage the maintenance
of, and/or rehabilitation of older homes so they
remain habitable over the planning period and
beyond. As the population ages, provision must be

2020 2025 2030
—&— NUMBER OF HOUSES WITHIN THE CITY LIMIT
~—8— NUMBER OF HOUSES INCLUDING ET)

Figure 3.1— Projected number of housing unit needs for City of Lucas

considered for proper accessibility for an increasing elderly and disabled population.
Attention to building design and adaptability can achieve a solution to this challenge.

HOUSING ACTIONS

Housing needs and some of the potential housing issues within the City have been
identified above. The prevention of housing issues in Lucas will require the
development and implementation of an effective housing program. Although this will
be an ongoing process, specific actions for the next five years have been developed.
These actions, all of which will be of negligible cost to the city, are listed below.

Action Items:

1. Beginning with those units in worst condition, complete the rehabilitation of
housing units in the City by using one or a combination of the following

methods:

e Strict Code Enforcement of the City’s adopted ordinances.

e Hstablish or coordinate with existing benevolent groups such as Habitat for
Humanity to help those unable to help themselves.

2. Review current zoning ordinance for compliance with development issues within

the city.

Page 9

THREE




LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

LAND USE

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the land use analysis is to provide both statistical and graphical
information concerning the various types, amount and intensity of land use within
Lucas and identify problems which have arisen as a result of conflicting land use
patterns or inappropriate land uses. An updated future land use plan can then be
produced enabling Lucas to better guide land development in a manner which reflects
local goals and objectives.

The total corporate limits of Lucas comprise 9,855 acres of land while the actual
developed area of the City covers 7,285 acres. The extraterritorial jurisdiction (ET])
covers an additional 1922 acres. Figure 4.1 at the end of this chapter displays an aerial
illustration of the City of Lucas and the extraterritorial (ET]) pockets within the city.

ANALYSIS OF EXISTING LAND USE
Residential Land Use

Residential land use consists of 5,582 acres of single
family land use and 43 acres of manufactured homes land
B use, or 56 percent of the gross land area of Lucas. This is
the most important land use classification in Lucas. Most
single-family development lies in the central portions of
Lucas, taking advantage of gentle topography which is out
of floodplain areas. Although there are some scattered
. : commercial uses intermingled with single-family uses,
most nelghborhoods contend only with vacant lots as the only other use present.
Manufactured homes account for 0.6 percent of total developed land area.

Commercial Land Use

Commercial land use covers 505 acres or 5 percent of the gross land area of Lucas.
Access to public sewer facilities is allowed only in areas designated by metes and
bounds that have been zoned for commercial use. There are six independent school
districts in City of Lucas and one private school:

e McKinney ISD

e Princeton ISD

e Allen ISD
e Lovejoy ISD
e DPlano ISD
e Wylie ISD

e Lucas Christian Academy

Page 10



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

Most of the remaining commercial land uses within the city are in close proximity to
the major roadway system. At present, there appears to be minimal conflict between
commercial land uses and adjacent land uses.

Industrial Land Use - (These parcels are zoned LI light industrial)

Industrial land use covers 7 acres or 0.08 percent gross land area of the City and
consists of light industrial uses along the north side of West Lucas Road. These light
industrial uses have potential for conflict with adjacent future residential uses.

Streets and Rights-of-Way

Land utilized for streets and utilities comprises 965 acres, or 9.79 percent of the gross
land area of Lucas. Streets do not pose any conflicts with other land uses in Lucas as
these uses tend to be compatible.

Public/Semi-Public Land Use

Public and semi-public land use within Lucas covers 29 acres, or 0.30 percent of the
gross land area. Most of this is utilized for City facilities, cemeteries and public utilities
such as water towers.

Parks Land Use

Parks land use covers 153 acres, or 1.55 percent of the gross land area of the City.
This includes three neighborhood parks, the Lucas Community Park and two parks
located adjacent to Lake Lavon. In general, parks are compatible with their
surrounding land uses.

Agricultural and Open Space Land Use P——

The remaining land use types, including agricultural and open
spaces, are located randomly throughout the City. Agricultural and |
Open Spaces cover 2,570 acres or 26.08 percent of the gross land
in the City of Lucas. In addition to land located in flood plain
areas, this also includes those areas which are usually subdivided
into lots with access to potable water facilities and paved streets or
where surrounding development densities make agriculture or
ranching less practical.

SOCIO-ECONOMIC AND MAN-MADE INFLUENCES
AFFECTING LAND USE

An analysis of the existing development activity in Lucas should examine the following
basic influences: population growth, housing availability, public utilities and facilities,
transportation, and development constraints posed by both the natural and man-made
environment. This can then be used to better determine the influences which will
define future land development in the City.

PL AN

FOUR

Page 11



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Housing

Lucas is comprised of only single-family housing units. With a steady growth in
population, it is anticipated that the demand for well-constructed and well-maintained
housing will continue to increase. Therefore, more units will need to be built to
provide adequate and safe housing for the growing population. As the City’s
development approaches a “built out” condition, the increase in tax revenue due to
new housing should be expected to diminish.

Infrastructure

Future growth and appropriate levels of service depends upon the City's water supply
and distribution system, street system, and drainage system at suitable capacities and
operational levels to meet demands. Various elements of Lucas’ water, streets, and
drainage systems will need improvement in the coming years.

Public/Semi-Public Facilities

Public facilities in Lucas include a City Hall, community center, parks, cemeteries, fire
station and utility sites. As the future population increases, there will be a corresponding
increase in the demand for these public facilities.

OTHER SERVICES

As the population increases, there will be an increase in the local demand for retail
and/or consumer services. The City of Lucas has approximately 5.85 acres of
commercial land use per 100 inhabitants (excluding the schools). To avoid conflict
with adjacent residential uses and minimize negative traffic impacts, future
commercial uses should generally continue to be confined to peripheral areas of the
city.

ETJ AND FUTURE ANNEXATIONS
The extraterritorial jurisdiction of Lucas includes:

e Tand adjacent to Lake Lavon.
e A municipal utility district in the southeast corner of the City
e Several pockets of land scattered throughout the City as well as adjacent to it

Figure 4.3 depicts the current ET]. Additional development is anticipated to occur in
the ET]J.

Page 12



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

LEGEND
EXciTY OF Lucas

Figure 4.3 - City Limits and Excterritorial jurisdictions (E'T])

Page 13



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The composition of the ETJ area is presented in table 4.3 and figure 4.4. Any future
large-scale residential development in the ET] area will most probably occur to the
southeast adjacent to Lake Lavon. As opportunities arise, the city should favorably
consider annexing those "out areas" currently within the city limits as they become
available for annexation. It should be noted that development agreements are in
place which preclude some of the ETJ areas from annexation at the time of
preparation of this Comprehensive Plan. The available areas for annexation at this
time include:

e Claremont Springs Phase 1
e (Cimarron

e Fdgewood Estates

e Trinity Park

Table 4.3 - Allocation of Existing ET] Land Uses

LAND USE ACRES % OF GROSS
SINGLE FAMILY 490.88 2554
COMMERCIAL 3744 1.95
INDUSTRIAL 0.00 0.00
PARKS 32.39 1.69
PUBLIC/ SEMI-PUBLIC 215 0.1
STREETS 73.00 3.80
JS\P(iRégUL'IURAL AND OPEN 128643 66.92
TOTAL 192229 100.0

Source: Angust 2015 land use survey using aerial photography

Fignre 4.4 - Allocation of

Existing ET] Land Use
25.54%
| 1.95%
4%
66.92%
0.11%
AGRICULTURAL AND OPEN SPACE = SINGLE-FAMILY
W STREETS COMMERCIAL
m PARKS PUBLIC/ SEMI-PUBLIC

Page 14



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

Lucas has previously adopted zoning and subdivision ordinances. The subdivision
ordinance provides the City with control over development practices within both the
City and the ETJ. The zoning ordinance is used to regulate land uses that can occur
within the city limits. The continued monitoring of these ordinances is important to
ensure future development activities are consistent with the City’s development
objectives.

LAND USE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The goal of Lucas is to optimize land use in order to increase the quality of life of the
residents. Lucas' land use goals are to avoid traffic congestion, inadequate or obsolete
utilities or services and the location of incompatible land uses adjacent to one another.
The proper planning and use of land will result in well-ordered land uses and
development patterns as the City progresses.

LOCAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES AFFECTING
DEVELOPMENT

GOAL 1
Develop the community in a manner which preserves and maintains property values
and is consistent with the City's ability to serve existing and future development.

Objectives:

e Plan for reasonable demand with regard to water, street circulation and
neighborhood connectors.

e Maintain the present rural atmosphere with a majority of large-lot residential
development.

GOAL 2.
Preserve the residential and rural small-town atmosphere of the community while
encouraging some quality small-scale economic development.

Obijectives:
Utilize the “Survey of selected business” as a guideline for attracting business to the
community.

e Ensure that commercial and other "high activity" uses are adjacent to designated
neighborhood connectors to maintain acceptable fire/emergency response times.

e Preserve peripheral areas to the south and west for future limited commercial and
moderate density residential development.

e Regularly review, update (if necessary) and enforce the zoning and subdivision
ordinances to minimize the intrusion of incompatible land uses.

e Promote the general health and safety of the residents of the community.

Page 15

PL AN




LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

It is important to understand that the Land Use Plan for Lucas is intended to serve as
a general guide for the future development of the city. It should be considered flexible
in nature, rather than a rigid blueprint for future land use. The population, housing,
infrastructure and land use data contained in sections of this Comprehensive Plan
serve to establish the determinants for land use projections.

FUTURE LAND USE
Land Use Planning Principles and Process

The following principles are considered applicable to the proper designation of land
for residential use:

e Residential land should be well drained and free from danger of floods.

e Residential land should be readily accessible from, but not necessarily facing,
arterial or collector streets.

e Residential land should be free from the danger of encroaching incompatible land
uses.

e Residences should be able to access community facilities such as parks, schools,
playgrounds and commercial facilities serving everyday needs.

Factors relating to the designation of land for commercial land uses include:

e Commercial areas must be located to maximize the use of major neighborhood
connectors while minimizing excessive traffic impacts on residential roads and
neighborhoods.

e Commercial areas should be limited and compact.

e Commercial areas must allow for safe automobile/pedestrian access and
circulation. (Commercial areas require sidewalks per our adopted regulations)

e Commercial areas must be designed to avoid blighting effects on adjacent
residential land and must be kept from encroaching on other sensitive land uses.

The proposed locations for commercial activities on the periphery of the community
is acceptable both in terms of decreasing traffic stresses on central area roadways
while providing accessibility to area customers. Commercial areas, if propetly
developed with landscaping programs and a developed access route to remove
consumer traffic from through traffic, can be an asset to a community. It is with these
factors in mind that the following principles were established for the planning of
commercial areas:

e Commercial land uses should be formed into compact developments, avoiding
"strip commercial" growth.

e Avoid the occurrence of scattered commercial development along major
highways. Commercial activities should be consolidated into a few well organized
areas to take maximum advantage of utilities and services and to promote the
economic well-being of the total business community.

Page 16



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

e Adequate off-street parking and access should be utilized for commercial areas to
decrease potential congestion and safety hazards.

e Avoid commercial growth on both sides of heavily traveled highways.

As the City of Lucas grows, future fire stations and emergency sites should be located
to minimize the response time in accordance with National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) standards.

In order to formulate, adopt and implement a plan that accomplishes the foregoing
overall goals and objectives, it is important to incorporate certain basic planning
principles and processes into the local future land use planning effort. The Future
Land Use Plan expresses projections that are based on sound planning principles,
recognizing and supporting existing land uses, community facilities and physical
features.

The plan for Lucas suggests that certain areas be reserved and developed for various
land uses. Selecting the pattern and distribution of future land use is best

accomplished through:

1. The analysis of existing land use characteristics

2. The effects of existing infrastructure

3. The location of existing neighborhood connectors
4. 'The application of recognized planning principles

These characteristics and principles establish a process by which to judge the most
optimum and best land use based on local and community-wide standards. There are
two advantages of going through such a process. First, it results in a land use plan for
the City as represented by the Future Land Use Map. The Future Land Use Map can be
used to assure that individual decisions follow a comprehensive pattern. It also helps in
the sensitive but necessary evaluation of change with respect to public and private
benefits. Second, the establishment of this planning process provides the City
with a method of logically making subsequent land use decisions It is important to
reiterate that the Future Land Use Plan does not attempt to set the specific use for each
and every parcel in the planning area.

RECOMMENDED ASSIGNMENT OF LAND USES

Residential Land Use Requirements

The assignment of land uses is then based upon the goals, objectives and planning
principles previously stated. It is anticipated that new residential uses will be built
as (1) new subdivisions close to or within current city limits, as (2) larger lot
development in sparsely populated areas adjacent to Lake Lavon and the ETJs,
and as (3) in-fill development/redevelopment. As one moves further west and
south, residential densities transition from larger lots of two or more acres, to lots
of one and one-half acres, and one acre. By establishing this hierarchy of
development density, will result in a more cohesive land use throughout the City.

Page 17



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Commercial Land Use Requirements

Future commercial land use allocations in Lucas should focus on peripheral locations
to minimize traffic impacts on residential areas, reduce the potential for incompatible
land uses, and minimize subsequent potential adverse effects. Drive will serve local
needs with limited impacts to commuter and passerby highway traffic.

Industrial Land Use Requirements

No provision is made for future industrial development in Lucas. There are no
perceived benefits to the City in preserving areas for future industrial development.

Parks Requirements

With respect to parks and open space, local opportunities for residents exist in Lucas.
Expanded recreation options can be a benefit if operating and maintenance costs are
held to manageable levels. Because of its limited tax base, Lucas should only expand
park and open space facilities where and to the extent they are deemed needed.

RECOMMENDED LAND USE PLAN

A current delineation of existing conditions in both graphic and tabular form will not
only allow for an up-to-date analysis of needs but will also allow for a measurement
of success in achieving the Plan. Further, the Future Land Use Map should be used
as a guide to keep incremental changes of the community in perspective. The
individual decisions which actually shape the community, however, should be
evaluated with respect to the characteristics and principles discussed throughout this
document. Exceptions to this plan can be made and can be acceptable on a case by
case basis where the greater good of the community is enhanced.

Page 18



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

INTRODUCTION

Economic Development can be defined as the basis by which a community maximizes or
preserves the quality of life for its citizens. Economic development is a complex process
vital to a community's pursuit of greater prosperity. Successful community development
is a result of a well-executed economic development process that is given high priority by
local leadership, and supported by residents. Moreover, economic development provides
local employment and investment opportunities that generate these revenues. These
revenues pay for public improvements, services, and facilities, as well as offset the
increases in property taxes. However, for the City of Lucas, it is important to understand
that economic development is only supported when it sustains the overall livability of
Lucas. What does the term livability mean with regard to city planning? Many
intangibles make a city livable, such as a sense of community, a strong sense of place in
particular areas, city pride, and the friendliness of neighbors. However, there are also
tangible aspects which can nurture livability. Therefore, the aspects of livability that this
chapter will embrace include:

e Creation of a trail network that connects neighborhoods;

e Creation of neighborhood identity, and areas with a strong “sense of place”;

e Aesthetic quality of the neighborhoods and community;

e Proximity to open space and recreational opportunities;

e Proximity and availability of other community services such as high quality
schools;

e THase of access to and quality of retail and restaurants;

e Traffic flow and managing the impact of development and the associated
increase in traffic on neighborhoods;

e Sustainability in buildings and development pattern; and

e Accessibility to natural areas

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS AND POLICIES

Regional Context

Many aspects of regional development and demographic trends have a significant
influence on economic potential. State, national, and international economics influence
the regional and local economic potential, as well as contribute to the undetlying
assumptions for conducting regional and local economic analysis.

Lucas, with a current population estimate of 6,875 persons in 2016, contains a total land

area of approximately 9,855 acres. An additional 1,922 acres is located within the extra-
territorial jurisdiction. The city's location in Collin County places it on the northeastern

Page 19

PL AN

FIVE




LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

edge of the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex, convenient to most major employment
centers.

Physical Growth Patterns

The Future Land Use Plan (Figure 4.5) depicts future land
development characteristics for Lucas. Lucas is a traditional
bedroom community with primarily large single-family lots and
open spaces located through the core of the city with commercial
located on the periphery. Residential is served by on-site sewerage
facilities (OSSF), which requires a minimum of one acre for a
residential home site. Commercial is served as defined by the
Waste Water Master Plan. Commercial development is planned in
two primary areas of the City. Both of these areas have been
planned and have all necessary services installed for development.
Unlike residential development, these areas for commercial
development have access to sanitary sewer infrastructure installed
with capacity available to meet future demand for these services.

In the past, the majority of commercial establishments consisted of small retail
providers catering generally to local trade. In recent years major commercial growth has
occurred along the western city limit boundary near the City of Allen, between West
Lucas Road and Estates Parkway. In addition to development of commercial
establishments near the western city limit, future commercial growth is anticipated near
the southern city limit boundary in an area west of Southview Drive. Since Lucas
foresees itself in the future as a community of primarily low density residential uses, the
City will focus on appropriate, smaller scale commercial development, which will
generate an acceptable level of sales tax revenues while effectively serving the needs of
the local population base.

Local Regulations and Development Policies

The local regulations are reflected in the City's subdivision and zoning ordinances. Both
ordinances must effectively direct development activities in a manner which both
reflects local goals and objectives while recognizing realistic development standards.
These regulations are not intended to discourage growth but rather to ensure that any
new development provides for quality facilities and services.

Economic Base Study

The majority of all workers living in Lucas tend to be employed in occupations which
requite a higher or higher/moderate skill level. According to the US Census Buteau
estimates for 2009-2013, the median household income in City of Lucas is $101,630,
which is almost twice the $51,900 median household for the State of Texas.

Page 20



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

Utility Services

The City of Lucas is the retail provider of water for its residents and businesses and its
water wholesaler is the North Texas Municipal Water District. Details regarding the
water system are described in Chapter 8 (Water) of this planning document. TXU and
Grayson/Collin Electric provide electrical distribution. Natural gas, supplied by
CoServe, is available in limited areas of the city.

Industrial Sites

Presently, there is no industrial development in Lucas. The high land costs in the area,
compared to the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex, the zoning, the limited sanitary sewer
system and the emphasis on Lucas remaining a low density residential community, are
factors which make future industrial development in Lucas unlikely. The proximity of
Lucas to major employment centers makes the issue of local job creation less
important. Residential development is and will continue to be the most dominant land
use along with minor ancillary development.

Commertcial Sites

Lucas has a total of 505 acres of commercial development. By excluding land reserved
for schools, 375 acres are directly reserved for commercial land uses. Future
commercial sites will be located on the periphery of the city to minimize intrusive
traffic volumes on interior neighborhoods. Details are provided in the Land Use
Section of this planning document.

Community Assessment

It is important to note there is a critical link between economic development and
comprehensive planning. Economic development is impacted by:

e Tand use;

e Zoning;

e Accessibility to utilities;

e Access via transportation systems and infrastructure; and

e Demographics..

Characteristics of the City of Lucas include:
1. A property tax rate lower than the average for cities in Collin County and for
the cities in DFW region. ($0.320661 in 2015)

2. The city has traditionally had a conservative City Council that places an
emphasis on providing a balance between necessary services with low taxes.
Skilled labor represents a high percentage of the Lucas work force.

4. Commercial land availability along FM 2551and the southeast quadrant of the

City (FM1378 and Parker Road).

5. Vacant land for additional housing.
6. Sewer service is available in commercially zoned areas as defined by the Waste

Water Master Plan.

7. Land prices are higher than region or state average.

&

Page 21

PL AN



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

It is important for Lucas to realize its potentials and liabilities in terms of future
economic development. Because of its location, Lucas has more potential for
developing as a quality residential area than it does in becoming a significant economic
center. However, it is important for Lucas to develop some commercial areas to meet
the needs of residents.

While it is possible to operate primarily upon property taxes, doing so may require
undesirable constraints on future spending. It is important Lucas not become
dependent solely upon property taxes as the only revenue source for local government
operations. The City of Lucas needs a healthy mix of ad valorem and sales tax revenue.
Ad valorem taxes should be used generally for day-to-day operations while sales tax
revenue should be used for capital projects.

Decision regarding business location will come from the business owner and his or her
willingness to invest in a particular site; however, the city's development environment
as conveyed through its development codes will have a major impact on where and
what type of business activity takes place.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Economic development in Lucas should have two major thrusts: (1) maintain
appropriate housing development and (2) attract businesses that are appropriate for the
City. Commercial development has benefitted the City with increased revenue.
Balancing the financial well-being of the City and its ability to provide essential services
with the citizens’ desire to maintain the features and attributes of the City is paramount.
Therefore, it is important to emphasize citizen feedback during the public meeting
regarding economic development.

HOUSING SUPPLY

The demand for quality, upscale housing in Lucas is expected to continue. Lucas should
focus on quality housing to ensure that values are maintained and the city continues as
desirable place to live.

ATTRACTING NEW BUSINESSES

Attracting appropriate new businesses to Lucas will increase tax revenues and fund city-
provided services. There is attractive land available for new businesses in western and
southern city limit boundaries with infrastructure in place or in the planning stages. The
western area is accessible through three arterial roadways including West Lucas Road,
Estates Parkway and Angel Parkway. The area in southern part of city is similarly
accessible through two major arterial roadways East Parker Road and Southview Drive.

Page 22



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The citizen’s preferable commercial businesses survey conducted by the City in 2015
should be utilized to attract businesses desired by citizens of Lucas. The top five
responses from the survey include:

e Sit Down Family Restaurant
e Farmers Market

e Garden/Nursety

e Grocery Store

e Feed Store

These types of retail establishments typically generate sales tax revenues. It is
anticipated that planning for the continued development of similar businesses in the
western and southern part of the city in commercial zoning areas will continue.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Based on input from Lucas citizens, Boards and Commissions, City Council and staff,
the following economic development goals and implementation strategies are
recommended:

GOAL 1:
Support business endeavors that are in harmony with the rural characteristics and
distinctive environment.

GOAL 2:

Improve and maintain the infrastructure to support growth in the tax base and sustain a
sound financial future through the adoption and implementation of a capital
improvement program.

GOAL 3:
Attract businesses to Lucas that serve the local population and promote the livability
and a high quality of life for our citizens.

Page 23



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE

INTRODUCTION PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TRAILS

The amount and quality of parks and open space within a
community are often cited as important elements of local quality
of life. Lucas has recognized this fact through an adopted Park
/. Plan and a park dedication ordinance. Lucas is a unique
; # community with large lots and open spaces naturally throughout
the city. The city’s entire eastern boundary is located on the shores
of Lake Lavon, with natural waterways through the city for storm
water run-off.

Due to the unique features of Lucas and the large lots and natural
open spaces, parks are not as important to the city as they are to
surrounding communities. With input from the community,
Boards, council, and staff it was decided that existing parks with
the exception of the future potential to expand existing facilities
especially at the community park located next to city hall, that we
have adequate parks facilities. The city should concentrate on
expanding existing equestrian and hiking trails adjacent to the city
on US Army Corps of Engineering property and throughout the

city.
COMMUNITY COMPOSITION

The City of Lucas contains a total land area of approximately 9,856 acres.
Approximately 74 percent (about 7,285 acres) of the land within the existing City is
developed, while the remaining acreage is vacant or being used for some agricultural
related purpose. Lucas currently has six parks (153 acres) utilized as parkland and has
no planned or designated open space system. In addition the City of Lucas is located
immediately adjacent to Lake Lavon, which provides opportunities for water based
recreational activities, trails and open spaces.

PREVIOUS PARKS AND OPEN SPACE STUDIES

The City of Lucas historically has had common visions for development of Parks &
Open Space. Previous studies performed date back to 2001 when community
planning involved City officials interacting with the citizens in the form of Town
Hall meetings and questionnaires intended to gather preferences and opinions about
parks and open space in the City. Preferences and opinions came from a sample of
the population voicing a variety of choices. A 2001 study entitled "Lucas Parks and
Open Space Master Plan" presented a detailed analysis of the park system, open
spaces, possible programs and recreational opportunities available,

Page 24



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

and the detailed history of lands in the City. The study also painted an overall
picture of the City’s situation regarding these issues, described a strategy in which to
develop a parks and open space master plan, and established goals and objectives
outlining means to implement the proposed plan. Additional study was performed
as a part of the 2004 City of Lucas Comprehensive plan which included an
evaluation of the parks and recreational opportunities in the City and the current
opportunities available and existing facilities available.

In 2015, the City hosted several Town Hall meetings to provide forum to receive
feedback from citizens and to address the parks, recreation, and open space needs. The
town hall meetings, previous study, and ongoing changes to parks and recreation in the
region will serve as a backdrop in describing the current opportunities as they exist
today.

EXISTING PARKS AND OPEN SPACE

Over the years, the City of Lucas has developed 4 parks and preserved open space in
accordance with community planning efforts. The existing parks and open space
include Brockdale and Highland Park currently operated by the Army Corps of
engineers, and one private park located in the Stonegate sub-division making a total of
6 parks in the city and they are described and evaluated as follows.

BROCKDALE PARK

Brockdale Park was established in 2005 and is located at east edge of City of Lucas
immediately next to Lake Lavon. Brockdale Park is 127 acres and has several
amenities that have been developed and includes The Blackland Prairie Raptor Center
that is located in the middle section of the park. This center is a nonprofit,
rehabilitation and conservation education organization. The mission of this
organization is to preserve the environment through public education and conservation
of birds of prey and wildlife in their natural habitat.

KENNETH R. LEWIS PARK

Kenneth R. Lewis Park is located adjacent to FM 1378 (Southview
Dr.), near the southern side of the City. The park is approximately 5
acres and offers baseball/softball field and soccer field. About two
thirds of the park is open space and undeveloped for use with other
activities.

LUCAS COMMUNITY PARK AT CITY HALL

The Lucas Community Park at City Hall is directly adjacent to the
southern side of City Hall Parking Lot. The park is approximately 3
acres and offers a 5-foot wide concrete sidewalk that circulates the
park and a pavilion for picnics and barbeques for the City residents of Lucas, and a
large playground including multiple slides and climbing areas. The park also boasts a

Page 25

PL AN

SIX




LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

community center with rooms available to residents at no cost. The parking area
provided for the City Hall can be also utilized for the community park.

HIGHLAND PARK

Highland Park is located at Northeast edge of the city just off Snider Lane. This park is
approximately 59 acres and has a minimal of services developed at the park.

Highland Park Provides a boat ramp at the north end of the park for boating and
fishing activities on Lake Lavon. The ramp is concrete with ample parking for trailers
and vehicles. Entrance to the boat ramp area is via Highland Park Road. Available
facilities at this park include the following: a parking area, boat ramp, and restrooms.

As with Brockdale Park, the Trinity Trail passes through the Highland Park. There is a
trailhead existing at this park that serves as a point for riders to unload and load their
horses with an entrance area on Highland Park Road. The Trinity trail continues north
past the limit of Highland Park to the north end of City of Lucas limit near the North
Texas Municipal Water District Treatment Plant as previously discussed. Available
facilities at the trailhead in Highland Patk include the followings: loading/unloading
area, restroom facility with ADA considerations, one pavilion, and a watering place
for horses.

FOREST CREEK NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

Forest Creek Neighborhood Park is located north of the City of Lucas next to Orchard
Gap Lane. The Forest Creek Neighborhood Park is a small 2 acre park with several
playgrounds and a soccer field. Access to the park is from Country Club Road via
Orchard Gap Lane off Norfolk Lane. Facilities available at this park includes a
traditional neighborhood playground and open space.

STONE GATE PARK

Stone Gate Park is a private park located on north side of the city in the Stone Gate
Neighborhood and is only accessible to residents of that neighborhood. This park is a
very small neighborhood park occupying less than 1 acre next to one of the tributaries
of White Rock Creek. This park offers a traditional multiuse playground, a small
gazebo, picnic tables and a 2-foot wide concrete sidewalk that passes through the park.
The sidewalk connects to a concrete trail that continues alongside the tributary of the
White Rock Creek.

OPEN SPACES AND NATURAL FEATURES

Open space represents the natural and agricultural through fields, pastures, prairies and
woodlands. Public and private objectives may differ in regard to preservation of open
spaces. The City’s desire to preserve open spaces will depend on achieving common
goals with private land owners and the public. The goal of maintaining open space
should be continued with interaction between the City and land owners to determine
common means to achieve these goals.

Page 26



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Other open spaces in Lucas are in the form of:
e Lake Lavon existing flood plain areas
e C(Crecks and waterways;
e Vacant lands, farm lands, pastures and rights-of-way

All these open spaces can potentially allow for trails and trail connections.

The most important natural feature in Lucas is Lake Lavon and its tributary creeks.
Constructed in 1954, the lake is owned and controlled by the U.S. Army Corp of
Engineers. There are twenty areas along the lake designated for park use, including
Highland Park and Brockdale Park which reside in Lucas. These parks provide water-
based recreational opportunities that would otherwise not generally be available in the
county.

EXISTING TRAILS

Currently Trinity Trail is the only trail in-use 4% Hj
that exists in City of Lucas. The Trinity Trail is [
situated along Lake Lavon with scenic views §
of the lake and surrounding landscape. The
trail extends to the southeastern city limit of
Lucas, and north to the City limit we share
with North Texas Municipal Water District.
This unpaved trail is 25.5 miles long and
placed on the US Army Corps of Engineers @
land along Lake Lavon from East Fork Trail &
Head in Wylie in the south to the Giant @&
Sycamore Loop to the north. Approximately
11 miles of the Trinity Trail passes through
the City of Lucas. This trail enters the City of
Lucas in the south from Collin Park in St.
Paul, and stretches north along the edge of the
lake passing through Brockdale Park and
Highland Park. This trail is only open to
hotrseback riders and hikers, and is maintained
and operated by a group of volunteers named Trinity Trail Preservation Association
(TTPA).

PROPOSED FUTURE TRAILS

Based on input from the citizens, boards, city council, and staff, the future needs of the
city are to add additional equestrian/hiking trails. Specifically a trail system linking the
Trinity Trails on the north side of the city with a trail through the city to reconnect with
the Trinity Trails on the southern end of the city. The proposed trail and trailheads
would start at E. Winningkoff Road and end at the Hunt property on the southern end
of the city at a future trail head location. The trail should utilize wet lands and natural
tree lines whenever possible to create a secluded and shaded trail area.

Page 27




LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The City has continued to work toward achieving the goals and objectives established
with previous comprehensive and community planning. By setting the goals and
objectives, some results are evident and progress has been made. Recognizing the
current achievements, changed environment and surroundings, a revised set of goals
have been outlined that share common themes that resonate with Collin County Open
Space Strategic Plan:

GOAL 1.
Preserve natural environment and native ecosystems.

Objectives:

e Conserve and protect ecologically sensitive and naturally beautiful areas, e.g.
flood plains along creeks, high points with scenic views toward Lavon Lake, etc.

e Establish and/or enhance green space and natural areas along flood plains, and
promote public access to green belt areas with trail systems, e.g. equestrian/
hiking trails, etc.

e Encourage and promote water conservation through the use of native plant
materials, xeriscape techniques, and other methods.

e Maintain high standards for groundwater quality due to the proximity of Lake
Lavon.

e Encourage development types, which minimize impacts upon the community's
natural resources and visual appeal.

GOAL 2.
Provide a comprehensive Trail System Plan to include green belt and open space that is
compatible with the environment and compatible with residential neighborhoods.

Obijectives:

e Continue to revise and adopt comprehensive Parks and Open Space Plan that
meets current preferences and reflection of changing environment in the region
in 2016.

e Promote trail connections, and ensure greenbelt and open space dedication
during the development review process.

e Create pedestrian and equestrian trails between residential neighborhoods,
linear greenbelts, schools, public administrative facilities, and other activity
centers, whenever physically and financially possible.

e Continue to adopt and finalize a detailed plan for necessary open space/ trail
easements to connect existing and future parks, schools, and neighborhoods
into an integrated, low maintenance park and recreation system.

e Formulate and adopt policies and ordinances that protect the acquitred/donated
park land and open space easements.

e Utilize trails, wherever possible, to locally and regionally connect schools, parks
and residential areas.

Page 28



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

Design a partks and open space system that is interconnected and
multifunctional, which protects important natural, cultural and visual resources
while providing appropriate opportunities for recreation.

Integrate locally planned trails with the "Collin County Regional Master Trail
Plan".

Coordinate planning efforts with those of adjacent cities.

GOAL 3.
Develop and maintain the new Lucas parks and open space system.

Objectives:

Determine actual maintenance cost currently needed to maintain existing parks.
Undertake the necessary effort to determine maintenance costs and capital
investment costs associated with acquiting and/or developing new patrks and
open space.

Allocate sufficient funding to maintain existing parks, open space and trails.
Formulate and adopt policies and ordinances that protect existing park
facilities, open spaces, and trails.

Explore cost sharing options such as Federal, TxDOT grants, or “Keep Lucas
Beautiful” for fund raising.

PLAN AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The purpose of the plan and recommendations is to provide community direction in a
constantly changing environment. Under existing and currently projected conditions
and circumstances, the City of Lucas parks, open space and recreational needs will be
well satisfied. Few things have so positive an effect on the quality of life in a
community as a well-executed plan for a community's parks, open space, trails, and
recreational facilities. These recommendations should be helpful to future decision-
making as each plan component is gradually considered for implementation or revision.

Equestrian, hike, and bike trails, greenbelts, parkways or paths should be
provided to connect large recreational areas, providing access, scenic views and
recreational opportunities.

Combined municipal and school recreational facilities should be used to serve
the community and prevent the construction of redundant facilities. If
possible, school recreational areas should include parking, drinking fountains
and restrooms and should remain open on weekends and during the summer
months.

Page 29

PL AN




LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

STREETS AND DRAINAGE

STREETS

The livelihood of a community is, to a very large extent,
dependent upon convenient and efficient access to
nearby major trade centers outside the city, major
national travel routes and transportation terminals of
national importance outside of the city. It is likewise
dependent upon efficient circulation of people within
B the city. Local streets should provide safe, reliable
- access to work, schools, shopping, and homes. A street
" network, therefore, is of vital importance as it ties a
community together and links it to the outside world.

The primary function of a street network is the safe
and efficient movement of vehicles and people. The
street network of any city operates, in effect, as the
skeleton of that city, providing access in varying
degrees to all properties abutting the network. Roadways and other rights-of-ways
occupy more than 13% of the total developed area and allow for circulation between
all areas within the City. In addition to moving traffic, streets provide: access to and
drainage for abutting properties; open space between buildings; and right-of-way for
various utilities. In this way, the street network is a primary factor in the determination
of appropriate land use locations.

The condition of the streets in a city are, perhaps, the item most noticed and for which
the city receives the most criticism. While the average citizen cannot see breaks in the
water lines or know that an area needs more water storage capacity, they are very aware
of the condition of the roads, especially ones near their homes. Street problems affect
them daily and can be very aggravating.

If adequate streets and drainage facilities are constructed, they can represent the largest
single required expenditure of a city, because problems within the street system are
costly to repair. The condition of the roads is affected by many factors: the quality of
the soil under the road base and pavement surface; the maintenance on the roads
needed to seal cracks and prevent water from soaking into the road base; drainage
conditions in the area (related to topography); and the ability to afford needed
improvements.

In order to repair the roads to proper standards for long term durability, many roads
must be raised or lowered to improve drainage, have additional right-of-way dedicated,
have improved drainage facilities installed, and have appropriate road materials used in
construction. This involves an intensive process. While a large number of the streets in
Lucas are in good condition, many are in need of immediate attention. All of the paved
roadways consist of asphalt or concrete.

Page 30



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

DRAINAGE

The topography of Lucas consists of both level and rolling terrain. As a result, localized
flooding can be a problem, especially where culvert and drainage ditches are obstructed
with vegetation or debris.

To help minimize property damage from flooding during periods of intense rainfall, the
drainage system for a community must be addressed, sized, and properly maintained.
The public has an expectation that no damage will result to property from storm
drainage or high water. Many factors directly affect the surface storm drainage
immediately adjacent to homes and other structures. Storm drainage facilities include
inlets, culverts, bridges, concrete lined channels, natural drainage channels, swales,
creeks, rivers, retention and detension ponds, and lakes.

Drainage can have significant effects on structural durability of streets and travel safety.
Level ground and poor drainage allows water to collect in some areas, which erodes the
road base and causes sections of road to fail, and can also lead to hydroplaning.
Currently roadway drainage is primarily handled via open ditches and culverts. The lack
of maintenance on some of these ditches has resulted in over growth of trees and other
vegetation. This over growth can make roads difficult to drain, and roots can
undermine the structural stability of the pavements. As a result the drainage system is
discussed in conjunction with the streets system in this chapter.

STREET SYSTEM ANALYSIS

General Street Statistics

Within the City, traffic control is achieved primarily with signage. The City does not
own, operate, or monitor any traffic signals to control traffic flow. However, the Texas
Department of Transportation (TxDOT) controls several traffic signals at these
intersections:

e T.ucas Road and Southview Drive
e West Lucas Road and Country Club Road
e Country Club Road and Estates Parkway

STREET CONFIGURATION AND
FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION

The roadways in Lucas, which are classified as arterials (Type A
and B), neighborhood connectors (Type C), and local streets S
(Type D). All of these roadways provide different levels of
access and serve varying levels of the traffic volumes.

The highest level of roadway in the City of Lucas is the arterial, ¥
which carries varying amounts of traffic based upon the number
of lanes, with somewhat limited access connections.

Page 31

PL AN

SEVEN




LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

On the next level of the spectrum is the neighborhood connector, which carries less
traffic for mostly local trips and has a higher level of access associated with it. At the
lowest end is the local street, which has direct access to every parcel and carries a more
limited volume of traffic. Figure 7.1 shows the relation between different levels of
roadways.

Presently, Angel Parkway, Country Club Road, Estates Parkway, Lucas Road, Parker
Road, and Southview Drive function as the arterial streets in the City. They allow traffic
movement to cities such as Allen, Fairview, McKinney, Parker, Plano, and Wylie..

The neighborhood connectors in the City are Blondy Jhune Road, Brockdale Park
Road, East Winningkoff Road, Forest Grove Road, Highland Drive, Ingram Lane,
Lewis Lane, Orr Road, Snider Lane, Stinson Road, Winningkoff Road, Snider Lane,
and Stinson Road. The remaining streets in the City function as local streets. On local
streets through traffic is normally discouraged, On-street parking is normally not
permitted throughout Lucas roadways. Figure 7.2 represents the street network in City
of Lucas located in the Appendix.

Allison Lane (future roadway)

Major Arterial Type A
Angel Parkway (FM 2551)
Neighborhood Connector Type C

Local Street Type D

Local Street Type D
Travis Ranch Rd |

Minor Arterial Type B . . . .
W Lucas Road Before beglnﬂlng ma] or lmprOVCmentS to

The geometric configuration of the street system is
adequate to meet most current vehicle circulation
demands. However, some of the roadways in the
City are narrow and have pavement conditions that
are unacceptable for current residents. The narrow
roadways are inconvenient for two way traffic.

McGarity Lane

Minor Arterial Type B
Country Club Road (FM 1378)

STREET SYSTEM EVALUATION

MNeighborhood Connector Type C
Ingram Lane

roadways, it is essential that the City have a street

Figure 7.1— Roadway Classification

condition assessment and management system in
place. This system will help to ensure that streets in the existing developed areas of
Lucas are improved in a uniform and orderly manner. It is through such a system that
completed City projects will provide maximum benefits and will become an integral
part of the future City. This should assist in the elimination of duplicate expenditures
and assure that possible early obsolescence of improvements can be avoided.

A system inventory, as part of a street management system helps to identify different
segments of the roadway system. Condition evaluation of the roadway segments is the
first step in planning improvement. Such a system will provide a continuous evaluation
of the street system inventory. It will also help to detect developing problems and
determine the proper, corrective action needed. If a road is found to be adequate for its
present service, it should be re-evaluated every five to 10 years to determine the trend
of changes affecting its future adequacy. A complete evaluation of the roadway system
would include all arterials, neighborhood connectors, and local streets in the city. As
part of the condition assessment, an extensive visual evaluation of the pavement surface
conditions, drainage, traffic control devices, and environmental conditions was
performed. This evaluation included collecting data on the existing conditions and
rating evaluated elements for adequacy.

Page 32



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The criteria for the condition assessment are based on criteria which was adapted to the
City needs. Table 7.1 describes the ratings used currently used in the assessment of the
neighborhood connectors. Figure 7.3 summarizes the present ratings of the
neighborhood connectors in Lucas.

This condition assessment identified .
neighborhood connectors’ segments Rﬂlll'g
that were nearing failure so that the
City might be able to repair or .
perform a total reconstruction. It

should be noted that the longer . . ;
repairs or proper maintenance are ACCG[IBHC Gaﬂnd:gsn@e,hﬂlnsmnmsr&:eﬁedsmi
deferred, the more expensive it will indications. Some minor cracking ar patch repatrs may exist:
be to repair a roadway to standard

condition.

3

EXISTING STREET _ . >
DEFICIENCIES GIG-Giis, @i Cul Topairs Dogiiiing o require atteniion.
The results of the data from the Uncomfortable mﬂ/u lndy wom l.'dig m =l
streets observation and the  7u 7.7 Rating Deswription ’ T ‘ 0t
assessments of the neighborhood

connectors combined with data

obtained from the City of Lucas were NEIGBORHOOD CONNECTOR CONDITION

utilized to identify deficiencies in need

of remedial action. These are ranked m
according to priority as in the
followings: 45% 58%
74%

. 90% mD
1) Street Paving c
While a large number of streets in the B
City are paved, have acceptable

pavement width, and are in fair to Ak
good condition, many are in need of
attention or have never been propetly
paved. Most of the concrete sections
of roadway are in good condition.
However, a majority of the asphalt streets, while seemingly in good driving condition,
are demonstrating signs of eminent failure due to inadequate road bases and potentially
poor in soil condition.

BLONDY JHUNE RD N WINNINGKOFF RD SNIDER LN FOREST GROOVE RD STINSON RD

Figure 7.3 Neighborhood Connector Condition

2) Street Drainage

As mentioned earlier, some of the street system has been affected by poor drainage
flow. The key areas that need to be addressed are silted and improperly sloped bar
ditches along some roadways as well as the silted or undersized culverts. These ditches
and culverts allow water to sheet across roadways causing premature damage. Potholes,
cracks, and slumped pavement are examples of what can happen when the road base is
allowed to erode.

Page 33



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

3) Street Right-of-Way

Many of the roadways appear to have been constructed with inadequate right-of-way.
As a result, bar ditches are too close to the road base, allowing water to prematurely
deteriorate it. These narrow rights-of-way also allow trees to grow too close to the road
ways, when the right-of-way is not cleaned or maintained propetly. Roots from these
trees have been found to burrow under the roadway. These roots cause premature
damage to the pavement.

4) Surface Deficiencies

Surface distresses appear on many of the City streets. The asphalt pavement related-
distresses that are most common included: longitudinal and transverse cracking,
potholes and patch deterioration, rutting, shoving and corrugation, alligator cracking,
and shoulder/pavement edge drop-offs, and deterioration. These deficiencies will lend
to citizen complaints if not managed propetly.

5) Street Width
Some roadways in the City are undersized. These narrow streets present a hindrance to
vehicular circulation.

If the deficiencies outlined above are addressed, the primary roadway problems will be
eliminated. The remaining streets in the City, which are maintained by TxDOT, will
continue to operate effectively within their design and function classification.

TYPES OF STREET IMPROVEMENTS

There are several different methods of maintaining streets within a City. The
appropriate choice depend upon the condition of roadway, the anticipated traffic load,
and available funds.

Generally, paving improvements for asphalt roadways utilize either asphaltic concrete
or surface treatments. The asphaltic concrete consists of a mixture of asphalt and
aggregate. Asphaltic concrete is usually prepared at an asphalt batch plant, taken to the
job site, laid by street paving contractors or paving machines on a prepared base
material, and compacted. Although asphaltic concrete is generally expensive, its
durability and relative ease of installation makes it the preferred type of surface
pavement in some communities. Surface treatment is generally used for road
maintenance or preventive maintenance of existing asphalt pavements. Surface
treatment is usually used by communities to renew the pavement where the road is still
in a relatively good condition. Chip seal is a very common form of asphalt surface
treatment. Surface treatment is considered as a short- term solution for extending the
life of a road, however it does not improve the strength of the pavement.
Recommended street maintenance improvements alternatives for City of Lucas can
include the followings.

e “Do Nothing” -- This means to not perform any type of improvements. This
might apply to roadways at very good condition. However, these roads should

Page 34



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

continue to be monitored for pavement deterioration over the next 5 to 10
years.

e Point Repairs -- Excavation of failed pavement sections to a depth of eight to
10 inches, back-filled with eight inches of crushed limestone stabilized with 2%
cement, primed and sealed with a coarse surface treatment. (Used to treat
potholes and other imperfections and roadway hazards.)

e Level-Up -- Leveling of depressions in pavement with hot/cold mix asphalt
concrete. This is used to even out roadway surface.

e Secal-Coat -- Application of asphaltic cement covered with uniform size of
aggregate and rolling the aggregates after application. Ideally used once every
three to five years to maintain streets and forestall more costly repairs. It should
be noted that seal-coating does not address the structural deficiencies and it is
only effective when the roadway base is in relatively good structural condition.
Seal-coating should be performed by only qualified contractors, as too much
asphalt is wasteful and insufficient asphalt does not seal the pavement or bond
the aggregate to the surface.

e Opverlay -- Depending on the severity of wear, approximately one inch of
surface is milled off the existing roadway. The remaining surface material is
then overlaid with a minimum of 1.5 to 2 inches of hot mix asphaltic concrete,
followed by a surface treatment. This is used to completely replace the surface
material of a street to address pavement deterioration and extend street life.

e Reclaim -- Scarifying existing pavement and base material, while adding cement
to create a recycled asphalt-enhanced roadway base. The base is then
compacted and overlaid with a new asphaltic concrete pavement. Streets
receiving this treatment might last five years, depending on the traffic load and
environmental conditions.

e Reconstruction -- Roadway reconstruction options removes of the existing
pavement structure, and the new pavement structure is recommended to
include a 6 to 12-inch lime treated subgrade, a flexible base, and asphaltic
concrete surface layer. The existing road pavement can be also replaced with a
new reinforced concrete pavement.

The City historically budgets approximately $500,000 each year for maintaining the
street system. These funds are used for point repairing, leveling-up, overlaying, and
reclaiming.

DRAINAGE SYSTEM ANALYSIS

The entire City relies on storm water drainage to be carried on the surface. The storm
drainage system of Lucas currently consists of a system of bar ditches, channels, and
culverts. These facilities carry storm water run-off within Lucas to the eventual
terminus outside the city limits in Lavon Lake or Lake Ray Hubbard.

Annual precipitation is approximately 42 inches per year. The rains are heaviest in
spring and fall. The streets in the City crowned to promote open ditch drainage on each
side.

Page 35



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) provides flood insurance rate
maps that depict the 100-year and 500-year flood plains. These flood plains cover those
areas that would most likely be inundated with storm water during the heaviest rains .
The r100- year floodway defines the area where buildings are not eligible for flood
insurance, while those located in the 100-year floodway fringe are eligible once flood
proofing is implemented. The goal of this program is to curtail development in flood
plains, thereby reducing damage to structures and minimizing the danger to people
during flooding. The City of Lucas is a participating city in the National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP).

The City of Lucas does not maintain most of the above drainage features within the city
limits, and jurisdictions. Collin County, TxDOT, and US Army Corps of Engineers
control some of those facilities in the extraterritorial jurisdiction and along some of the
roadways in and around the City. Most of the necessary seasonal maintenance is the
responsibility of the individual property owners. The open ditches running parallel to
the city streets receive little to no maintenance from the property owners. The root
cause of most if not all the negative drainage issues within the City of Lucas stem from
failure of the initial design and lack of maintenance. Many of the neighborhoods and
properties developed before 2002 did not have any consideration for proper drainage.
Properties along West Lucas Road, north of Estates Parkway and west of Country Club
Road, and along Estates Road were not graded or constructed for drainage.

GENERAL DRAINAGE PROBLEMS
Creeks

All creeks are subject to flooding at some point. However, most large channels have
had their flood carrying capacity as indicated by FEMA, as shown on their respective
floodway maps. It is important to note that creeks that have not been mapped by
FEMA are still subject to inundation.

Bar Ditches and Water Channels

A significant portion of the flooding that occurs in the City is associated with bar
ditches and culverts being inundated with rainwater flowing off adjacent properties
while following the natural topographical lay of the City. Despite the proper
construction and operation of the majority of these ditches, some are not able to deal
with the intense storm water flows brought on by heavy rains. As a result, water is often
left standing in intersections and yards of homes after rain has subsided. This water is a
breeding ground for mosquitoes, contributes to premature street damage and is a visual
blight on the City. Compounding negative drainage issues is the lack of understanding
by homeowners for their responsibility to maintain the drainage associated with their

property.

Street System

Some structures in the street system do not lend themselves to adequate drainage since
the facilities exist perpendicular to the natural flow lines. In cases where culvert passage
is silted, undersized or not provided, the storm water can cause prematurely damage to
roadways and major safety problems.

Page 36



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

PLAN AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Purpose

The purpose of the Streets and Drainage section of the Comprehensive Plan is to assist
the City in appropriating public funds in a manner which maximizes benefit. The plan
identifies those street and drainage improvements, which are needed in order to
provide an efficient transportation system, as well as minimizing property damage from
flooding during periods of intense rainfall in the City.

STREET RECOMMENDATIONS

The most important consideration when developing a plan for street rehabilitation is to
ensure that all plans for roadway construction also include plans for drainage
improvements. In Lucas, the drainage ditches along the sides of the roads serve as a
route of storm water removal from the City. All plans for road reconstruction must
consider the size and slope needs for drainage ditches or the potential construction of
curb and gutter as part of an underground storm sewer system. Any program for street
improvements without drainage improvements would be futile.

The City has adopted specific street section designs based on the classification of the
roadway. Different rights-of-way widths, pavement widths, and base thicknesses, are
required for roadways that are expected to serve differing levels of traffic. This is
especially useful when enforcing street quality standards and minimums for residential
subdivision developments.

If several years lapse before projects are undertaken, a new assessment may be
necessary to ensure that data is current. Whether increased traffic due to growth, new
commercial, and changes in City; maintenance practices can change the
recommendations made in this report. Street maintenance and repair plans should be
reviewed annually to adjust for cost and changes in the road conditions.

Proposed improvements were based on the street analysis, focusing on the
improvements that are most in need or will benefit the most people. High priority
projects including highly traveled roadways in poor condition or first-time paving
should be considered as soon as the City is able to finance the repairs. Typically, roads
with the greatest traffic should be improved first since a larger number of people will
benefit from the limited tax dollars available. This excludes the state roads since they
are maintained by TxDOT. For this plan, improvements are phased. Phasing of
improvements is designed to help minimize the financial impact on the community,
while still realizing the need to make necessary improvements.

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

As part of the Street Plan, recommended roads for reconstruction are presented in
Table 7.2. Possible funding sources has been developed and is presented below.

Page 37

PL AN




LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

These projects also include improving bar ditches along these roadways as
recommended previously.

For the remainder of the planning period, the City should continue to reconstruct
roadways that have inadequate bases. It should be noted that while overlay is a viable
solution for repairing damaged roadways, it is most effective when done on streets with
propetly constructed bases. If for example, a street impropetly constructed to handle
heavy vehicles is overlaid, it can be expected that continued traffic of this type will
accelerate premature roadway damage. Therefore, it is recommended that before
overlay is initiated, proper base construction be ensured. This way, maintenance costs
will be reduced and the longevity of the roadway will be ensured.

POSSIBLE FINANCIAL SOURCES

Street Name Type of Repair FOR STREETS

Blondy Jhune Road Reconstruction
The City should aggressively pursue these, and any
Forest Grove Road Reconstruction other funding sources, available to assist in providing
necessary street improvements:

Snider Lane and Bridge Reconstruction

e The General Fund

e General Obligation Bonds
Winningkoff Road Reconstruction e Certificates of Obligation
e C(City Sales Tax

e Special Fees/User Fees

Stinson Road and Culvert Reconstruction

Table 7.2 - Recommended Roads for Reconstruction, City of Lucas, Texas

POSSIBLE FINANCIAL SOURCES FOR DRAINAGE
IMPROVEMENTS

The following is a listing of sources which may be utilized to assist with future drainage
projects:

e The General Fund

e General Obligation Bonds

e Certificates of Obligation

e Grants through the Office of Rural Community Affairs

e Special Fees/User Fees

e Increase landowners’ participation

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL SOURCES

e Grants through the Office of Rural Community Affairs/Texas Community
Development Program can be used to re-pave and repair streets. However, while
streets are eligible, it is unlikely that a street project alone would be funded.
Therefore, it might be possible to incorporate some street work into another, more
fundable activity such as water line or sewer line construction where streets must be
torn up to bury line.

Page 38



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

Individuals who are required to perform community service can often be utilized to
do some of the required labor. Often times, this can be accomplished by
participating with local governmental units such as the county judicial system.

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) has a program designed to
maintain and improve on- and off-system roadways.

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) also has a landscaping cost
sharing program through which the department will provide landscaping materials
up to 50% of the project cost. The city's contribution may be in-kind in the form of
installation of materials. The city must provide the design plan for approval by the
department over and above the city's in-kind contribution. Finally, the city must
commit to maintaining the landscaping improvements

Loans from the Texas Department of Agriculture. These low interest loans can be
utilized in place of bank loans and the issuing of bonds.

In an Assessment Paving Program, the City has its engineer prepare designs and
cost estimates. Afterward, the City then, following carefully prescribed procedures
of notices, public hearings and bidding, begins making the street improvements,
assessing a portion of the costs against the adjacent property owners. The City may
have to advance the cost of the projects, but eventually, the property owners will
pay their fair share of the costs. This procedure is governed by the Texas Civil
Statutes.

Page 39

PL AN




LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WATER SYSTEM

INTRODUCTION

The City of Lucas owns and operates Lucas Waterworks that serves the residents inside
and outside its current Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) site map. The
Lucas Waterworks serves residents outside the city limits and outside the Lucas
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ET]J), but the City does not supply water to all residents
within the Lucas ETJ. The Seis Lagos Utility District, the Wylie Northeast Special
Utility District and the City of Allen supply water to a portion of residents inside the
Lucas city limits and within the Lucas ET]J.

The City’s water system is a vital part of the City owned infrastructure. The purpose of
this section on the water system is to update the Comprehensive Plan by providing a
description of the current water system, identifying the criteria for determining future
additions to the water system, and providing a description of the capital improvements
needed for the future water system.

EXISTING WATER SYSTEM

Water Supply

The City purchases water from the North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD).
Water is delivered to the City at two delivery points. One of the delivery points is at the
North Pump Station site located on Country Club Road between West Lucas Road and
Estates Parkway. The other delivery site is at the McGarity Pump Station site located on
McGarity Lane just east of Angel Parkway. The delivery point at the McGarity Pump
Station site is the newer of the two delivery sites. It was established when the first
facilities were constructed at that site in 2004 /2005.

Existing System Facilities

The principal facilities in the existing water system include ground storage tanks,
elevated storage tanks, and pump stations. The storage tanks and pump stations are all
located at the McGarity Pump Station, the North Pump Station and the Winningkoff
elevated tank site. The existing water system is shown on Figure 8.1 at the end of this
section. Following is a summary of the principal facilities in the existing water system:

Ground Storage:

McGarity Pump Station 200,000 gallon tank
350,000 gallon tank

North Pump Station 500,000 gallon tank
750,000 gallon tank

Total 1,800,000 gallons

Page 40



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Elevated Storage:

McGarity Pump Station 300,000 gallon tank
Winningkoff Site 300,000 gallon tank
Total 600,000 gallons

Pumping Facilities:

McGarity Pump Station:
Pump No. 3 — 750 gpm
Pump No. 4 — 750 gpm
Pump No. 5 - 750 gpm

North Pump Station:
Pump No. 1 - 1,100 gpm
Pump No. 2 — 1,000 gpm
Pump No. 3 — 1,000 gpm
Total 5,250 gpm

EIGHT

New Facilities

A number of facilities have been added to the existing water system since the last
comprehensive plan was prepared in 2004. These facilities include the initial McGarity
Pump Station facilities which were under construction at the time of the preparation of
the last comprehensive plan. Those facilities include the 300,000 gallon elevated storage
tank, the 200,000 gallon ground storage tank, and the pump station with the first two
750 gpm pumps. Other facilities that have been added to the water system include the
following:

Ground Storage:
750,000 gallon ground storage tank at the North Pump Station
350,000 gallon ground storage tank at the McGarity Pump Station

Pumping Facilities:

e Replacement of 900 gpm pump with 1,100 gpm pump at the North Pump Station
e New pump station at the McGarity Pump Station with two 750 gpm pumps

e Additional 750 gpm pump at the McGarity Pump Station

Water Lines:

e Country Club Road Water Line, including 9,200 feet of sixteen inch- and twelve-
inch water lines

e TForest Grove Road Water Line, including 1,000 feet of eight-inch water line
e Shady Lane Water Line including 2,200 feet of eight-inch water line

e Southview Drive Water Line, including 12,000 feet of twelve inch water line
e Brockdale Park Road Water Line, including 7,000 feet of eight-inch water line
e Brookhaven Drive Water Line, including 6,300 feet of eight-inch water line

e Stinson Road Water Line, including 11,700 feet of twelve water line

Page 41



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

e Water line to the fire station, including 320 feet of 12-inch water line
e Rock Ridge Road Water Line Phase I, including 3,500 feet of twelve inch water line
e Osage Lane Water Line, including 2,700 feet of six-inch water line

PARAMETERS FOR FUTURE FACILITIES

Typically, the two principal factors that determine the size and capacity of future water
system facilities are the anticipated water demand in the water system and certain
facilities design criteria. In the case of the Lucas water system, four other factors will
also have an impact on the future water system facilities. These factors are the pending
conversion of the water system from two pressure planes to one pressure plane, staging
the additions to the water system to account for development, the need to reduce the
number of dead end water lines in the system, and the ability of the NTMWD to supply
water.

Water Demand

Water demand is a function of the number of people living in the service area and their
water usage habits. The water customers projected population of the water customers is
included in the following table:

The present water system service area is shown in Figure 8.2.

The population to be served by the water system will include the build out population of
13,274, plus an estimated population of 168 people in the Allen ET] currently being
served by the water system. Accordingly, a total population of 13,442 located within the
proposed Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) will be utilized for
determining the water demand that will eventually need to be met by the water system.
The size and capacity of future system facilities will be based on this population of
13,442.

Since water demand in the water system service area is based on the population and their
water usage habits, historical water usage habits need to be determined in order to
establish the projected demands. Based on established water usage habits, the water
usage is approximately 250 gallons per capita per day, the maximum day to average day
ratio is 2.5, and the peak hour to maximum day ratio is 1.8. With a build out population
of 13,442 in the service area, this water usage will result in an average daily demand of
3.36 mgd, a maximum day demand of 8.4 mgd, and a peak hour demand of 15.12 mgd
for the water system at build out.

Design Criteria

Different design criteria can be used to determine the size and capacity needed for future
system facilities. Minimum requirements for determining the size of storage facilities
and pumping facilities are provided by the Texas commission on environmental quality
(TCEQ). Per the Texas commission on environmental quality (TCEQ), the water
system needs to have at least 200 gallons of ground storage and 100 gallons of elevated
storage per connection. More stringent design criteria has been utilized, per previous

Page 42



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

analysis, for the present water system. This design criteria is based on providing
clevated storage to meet peak hour demands in the system. Based on this criteria, the
elevated storage needs to have enough capacity to provide for peak hour demand with a
reserve of one-third of the total elevated storage capacity for fire flow. The ground
storage requires sufficient capacity to meet a specified portion of the maximum day
demand. The pumping capacity in the system needs to be sufficient to meet a specified
portion of the maximum day demand. It is recommended that the more stringent
design criteria, which has been used in the past for the existing water system, continue
to be utilized for system facilities.

Pressure Planes

The existing water system presently operates on two pressure planes. The upper
pressure plane is located primarily in the northwest part of the service area. The lower
pressure plane serves the rest of the service area. The facilities that provide water to the
upper pressure plane are located at the McGarity Pump Station site. The facilities that
provide water to the lower pressure plane are located at the North Pump Station site
and the Winningkoff Elevated Tank site.

Prior to the establishment of the two pressure planes, the water system was operating
on a single pressure plane. One of the goals is to reestablish one pressure plane in order
to simplify operation of the water system and improve efficiency. Due to the difference
in elevations of the elevated storage tanks serving the existing water system, one strategy
is an altitude valve installed at the Winningkoff elevated storage tank. This will allow
the two elevated storage tanks to work together in the water system when it is converted
to one pressure plane. Additionally limiting connections between the planes and the
installation of residential pressure regulating valves (RPRVs) are other strategies for
balancing the planes.

ET] Annexation

The areas within the Lucas ET] with the highest potential for annexation are already
being served by the Lucas waterworks. However, the large ET] area in the southeast
part of the City is not. If this ET] area is added to the City by annexation, the area
would not be added to the water system service area. These areas are currently located
within the CCN held by the Wylie Northeast Special Utility District (WNSUD) and the
Seis Lagos Utility District (SLUD). In general terms, the WNSUD supplies water to the
southeast corner of the city as well as the Inspiration neighborhood with in the Lucas
ET] and the SLUD supplies the Seis Lagos and Brockdale Park neighborhoods.

Projected population in this area at build out is 3,892 people. This added population
would not increase the projected population in the water system service area at build
out. The only potential impact to the Lucas waterworks would be the operation of the
SLUD water infrastructure. The WNSUD would most likely not relinquish its system
to the City of Lucas.

Page 43



LUCAS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Dead End Water Lines

There are a large number of dead end water lines in the existing water system.
Most of these have been created over the years as a result of expansion of the water
system, primarily when subdivisions were built. Several of the dead end lines are
long. Dead end water lines have to be periodically flushed per TCEQ requirements
in order to keep sufficient disinfection levels in the water lines. The City has to
devote resources and funds to accomplish this purpose. It is the City’s goal to
address this situation by reducing the number of dead end water lines in the City
thru the addition of water lines that will provide loops to eliminate the longer dead
end water lines. Looping lines will eliminate the need to flush the lines, will
improve the dependability of the system in the area, and enhancing fire protection.
Included at the end of this section is a water system map showing the existing dead
end water lines.

PROPOSED WATER SYSTEM

Proposed System Facilities

A number of system improvements will need to be made for the future water
system based on water demand, the design criteria for improvements, and the other
criteria mentioned in the previous section. The principal facilities needed for build
out conditions when the water system service area (without the large ETJ area in
the southeast part of the City included in the service area) include the following:

McGarity P.S. Site:

e 1,000,000 gallon ground storage tank

e Pump station with two 1,250 gpm pumps (replaces old pump station)
e 300,000 gallon elevated storage tank

North P.S. Site:
e Replace existing 8” delivery line (from NTMWD) with 127 delivery line
e Pump station with two 800 gpm pumps

Winningkoff Elevated Tank Site:
e Altitude valve with valve vault and piping

The additional facilities needed for build out conditions when the water system
service area (with the large ETJ] area in the southeast part of the City included in
the service area) include the following. These improvements are shown on Figure
8.4 (the capital improvements map) shown at the end of this section.

McGarity P.S. Site:
e Add a third 1,250 gpm pump in the new pump station
e 200,000 gallon elevated storage tank

Page 44



LUCAS COMPREHENSTIVE

North P.S. Site:
e 800,000 gallon ground storage tank
e Add a third 800 gpm pump in the new pump station

Water Lines:
e 127 water line along Country Club Road and East Lucas Road
e 12 water line between Brockdale Park Road and Southview Drive

The additions to the water system listed above for both sets of conditions (i.e., with
and without the large ETJ] area in the southeast part of the City included in the
service area) provide the facilities that will be needed in the water system under
build out conditions and provide a balanced water system with similar capacity
facilities at the two pump station sites.

Page 45

PL AN




LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

APPENDIX

Maps included in the Comprehensive Plan are as follows:

o Wastewater System Master Plan Map
e Water System Map

e Thoroughfare Plan Map

e Land Use Map

Page 46



LUCAS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

APPENDIX

Page 47



|
I 1
. | l
HIGH SCHOOL LIFT g 1 |
STATION AND I 1 . .
FORCE MAIN 8 : E E g 3
E I > ‘\‘F 3 & | y
DISCHARGE POINT TO : 3 B . F |
THE NTMWD REGlONA\ _g | N g g 3 .
SEWER LINE o | | o ‘ ' 2 & &
l S —I ESTATES PKWY. a ,‘3 -
& CREEK (| = 2% =
1 I 3% g
I I LOVEJOY L.S.D. - e 2
2551 COMMERCIAL I HIGH SCHOOL ToT B "
AREA I I : £
d " :
{ R
PROPQSED GRAVITY———= | I .. \ eshuze 1|5
SANITARY SEWER I L MCCARITY LN <
w
E I : TRAVIS RANCH RD :g ESTATES RD. a
ol g g
FiN <
= B
I g 4 g
| g »
] 2
4] wm - z
gl 2 g
| 2 g °
BETHANY AN W - WEST LUCAS RD.
(s
5
)
>
B
=
(=]
£
5
ELISA
REGAL WAY PL
FORCE MAIN ———=—
CR252
CURTIS
Z
2] §' ;
z & :
& z
SHEPHERDS 2
&
CHISHOLM
E POCO DR TR.
o
=
[>% C————————
ESTADOS DR JANNA WY.
FM 2514
FM 2514 (PARKER RD.)
>
S “3; §
=)

WENDY LN.

HOLLY LN.

HICKORY HILL ST.

SHILOH DR.

“»

) SNIDER LN.
<]
g &
E 1000 0 1000 2000
B
&
= scale feet
<
=~
CHRISTIAN LANE
a ©
e
Es: \\ 4] XY
ot g Z *
. = )
= & 'ROLLINGWOOD =
Z 5 .
=4 -3
% 3 " DR. = \\ 2 HOLYOAK CR391
| < E oW
= =
= 1<) > o o =
2 & Z % / T
a 5] E 5 5 3}

EDGEFIELD LN.

EAST LUCAS

20
RD.

™ ¥

» TIVOI00UE
&

o
(=}
:é & BROCKDALE BOAT RAMP
5 E
S E TRINTY TRAIL
2 £ BROCKDALE ENTRANCE
1]
SEIS LAGOS
CLUB HOUSE
‘\ — 1 HUNT COMMERCIAL
\ 1 AREA
"o : OSAGE LN.
LIFT STATION ==
\ & =]
=
! 5 § &
I i g S B
] l_ mE AL L MEADOWBROOK DR.
I AZTEC LN.

CITY OF LUCAS

WASTEWATER SYSTEM
MASTER PLAN

DOVE

CREEK
TAYLOR




Water System Map /

a STACY RD.
o
[=3
(=3
=
g 2
<] 2]
8 g g
é =
% E % 1000 0 1000 2000
2 %
OLD STACY RD. z oo Toct
& 1" = 1000
[=)
S
B
5 g E g E
S 5 g z NOTES:
FM 27gp g & )
STACY Rp. g ° > <}
= <
é Z E 1. THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR AND INTENDED TO BE
“ = Z A GENERAL GUIDE ONLY. DUE TO GRAPHIC
REQUIREMENTS SOME AREAS ARE NOT TO SCALE.
N
o~
FOREST GROVE EAST 3
STALLION| DR, w
. COYOTE RUN 0| 4
% STRE 8"
g STREET G o e
3 3
2 1.s -/ STREET D u b
E] = MUSTANG RD. ¥ ol . ~
i 5 ol 4 ©
= 5 - o
8 g 8" 8 HORSEMAN DR, @
| I S I _FOREST GROVE WEST o
13 = 0 3
z
)| St L RN E
= | " < 8=
2 = 8 2 , | of s I »
- YEe B2 g2
- //28 | &5 g3 DORIS DR. <]
SHADY |CREEK [z 12 o \| S, = ==
CIR. 5 =] 18 © ag 8 =l
@ - He . 2 Ol
o 8% / E< 8 - o
& = TREE |RoW DR] g |
§ Bn o [
£ . & FORD LANE || gw
I = \g = & -
CREE, 1 = ¢ s 2\ an| 5
Cll K AN 8
ROCK RIDGE RDJ 7 | . | 3] ENY § i
N
- |n %) g BN WINNINGKOFF TANK |, |~
: L 5 % o "z s
[ i 2 16 & o
| ] ot 2
l & (8" g -
2 | — 87 EAST WINNINGKOFF
I 6" q E I OAK BROOK | DR. ,
= o~ J2*
E
CRAHAM| LANE E | BRIARWICK DR. \-'-N | N
% TRy - |
MEADOW 2. & )
LANE FAIR BROOK CIR. MOONLIGHT N ¥ | | < - o McMILLAN %)
TRI, \/ WITE RPC { ,,) HIGHLAND PARK
RAMP
2 6 3 —\
© \ MCMILLEN ED. SHDER ) 7 = b
" CRT. [/
Lo 28 e |5 g
=] &=
7 - 2 L= =
N — 2" & ® .
% &%g@ & GITRUS MAY BLONDY JHUNE g
\ g u 0} SNIDER LN, < E
8 _i8' a |. 5 GLENBROOK CIR. > Y =
. " En Zlo g ( = NATHA . |2 4™ DAVSEL | CRT,
g2 . 8" |w z5 5 | . S =l o £ 3
- % Sg = e 2 l N 2 0 BEVERLY 35 i <+
S s ] Z @ S = - ey ] CIR. = & F3
= S =S = : = § °y—&
& » 2 g7 = S 2 © B o =
% 1 6" | g g KENNEDY EE EE| | SNIDER LN,
S B =z " g S
& - t L) —— RAMSAY DR. I
& w g» L8 16" % e ] -
= . . DRAWBRIDGE |ROA]
n Z 13 -4 1=}
ESTATES PKWY. FM 2170 2 In g ORTH PUMP| | °| % é o a 2| =
= | < STATION z W& x|
2 CREEK = Sla =] D &,
E g a[= o e B 8 &2
S| ok _soto E 2 g e S
= é% S
0 2 W & 5%
N R
. . 12" = » ™ Z fo X & A & 6
| 8 2 w 8" .2 Z L] N 32!
o o MONT DR VILTSEIRE 77} 74 6" & S &
Y | T MARCHMONT DR! IS s 8 v
=N CREEK :
| e ) CHATFIELD LN. " VIEN o 8 Q Ea
2 8 s 8 i 2 g CHRISTIAN LANE
18 Zz\ 12 |8 -] - E & \ NARROW R0AD
McGARITY PUMP STATION || = o E = S 2 2. ]
2 = e 35 o Em Z
E1irs B &g 5e \ ol = >
NTMWD DELIVERY LINE > = = » @ 3] /
TuLUsE CaT. | @ N\ o g 5 NORTHSTAR "RR.
McGARITY LANE — I /A = ]
- 5 o CE] » ESTELLE 1N. I 3 = BLOOM ST.
6 6 N - © = E 2 [
- = 4 3
z T} = o
g %l N g = g [5 || HOLYOAK' LN. 2 4
B & TRAVIS RANCH RD. 5 o = 2
b ) » | “ : = = .
& z o ESTATES FD._ 8 RUTLEDGE] LN, . g <l 15 E 2l |~
= = & o =) 17 2«2 |2
& = = GOOSE| RD. / a | 9 = g El
] = —— =) » z % 2] wlE27 51 &
] n E 8 g § WALKER | & ] = ] ®
3 o~ 2 a o %l 2l .8 NS & = @ g & CRijs7 |~
= = 2 1% 4 8 S 2 S &S J
= Zl—CRT) | -1 e 2
” o a CEDAR BEND & ©
= i =1 = /| [Cress
12 N @] 8 =] é STRATTON MiLL A EAST LUCAS ROAD
2 < Z\®, | 2 /rBLUE MOON DR. B ©) [ DR. g 7
! . 2\t e - 2 B
12 EG
- T a "
BETHANT CR190 WEST LUCAS|RD. 8 N g8 . Ir
N 6 GLEé\}COVE s
HOB HILL (PV.) ] R
| g
& o 6" g
= =
CAREY|IN. g a
»
aN. BLUR = g 2” 8
B 8" FVIEW DR, ~ g |t
BROC
;E N 55| oy KDALE PARK ROAD
(] A o
3
SANTIAGO p7 <
JTORDAN
CRT. &
Sy
CORNOR SEREy
N ] r—-‘
= gl @
7 z|
4" =
g Ell N
g L HICKORY HILL ST. g
§ ron SEIS LAGOS BROCKDALE BOAT RAMP
Z a| NOT SERVICED BY THE
12 5 CITY OF LUCAS
ELISA =
3 . 2
- a
1 ]
] ) S
KARA 2 E
- 2
REGAL WAY PL s [BELYORT @
=
5 8" z ~
A 3 BRISTOL PARKw ™
&0 GALWAY |
CR252 g DRIVE %E | I
= 2
CURTIS 2 ER
2} 7
= 2
JHIGHLAND DRIVE R Rl
o
=1 =
E =g
13 9
| a2 L
Z Z =
3 z (=] a
& ADDISON %
2 =l CQURT z E
E & = ] g
& B = 2 =)
<] /e | HIGHLAND DRIVE E
8" f g e OSAGE LN. »
& > - Al la 6
SHEPHERDS Ea il - —
= o =) S =
s 3 | g
TURNBERRY 8 P =gl =
LANE E o= = E
8" = L o = Z 151
a
| o IRRERE
> =
POCO DR. l K] o = Ex LEGEND:
s CHISHOLM TRL. ZE E; =
’u 6" 4 E = & E
] & | Z g MEADOWBROOK-DR!
o | = SHILOE DE. 3 3 P - EXISTING WATER LINE
8 \ » = JANNA VAY 4 - 5 & o
& \ z Jfe 6 = —_— & 2 -
&
2 ESTADOS DR. |} ﬂé INDIAN TRL). & 6 2" o I é AZTEC IN.
z j<)
12 = ¥ g 'THUNDERBAY) | 2
1 ° 6" & o = DRIVE | [
FM 2514 =
FM 2514 (PARKER RD.) 6
PARKER RD. .
g o o3
= « [=1
8 37 g8
]
> @ § 83 gl |g
g %‘ 3 ) ) = CR727
a
D
g E E = FM 2514 ST PAUL Rl
& g
= >
g £
&
g =
LAKEWAY = =
3 o
2
N

J: \16—1727\DRAWINGS\1727—-SERVICE.DWG — DEC. 2015




L10C/E1/T

0¢g ¥ ON oMm], (umoyg j0N) a
I0309UU0Y)
08 8C 01 1T ON oM, pooyIoqysoN
EEEEREREm U
09 ¥ 01 26 ON moy bt q
o URIPIJA] J0O-9] & SN[ sox - - - - v
wh T
(199:9) Wprm
Jjuawaseq (EER) Kempeoy saue| adAT
10 Aep JIPIM JUswaAR ] papIAL(] JO "'ON aIejy3noIoy |
-J0-1y3ry

'2dA) axrejydnoioy) Aq pamofjoj ST oureu arejysnoIoyy,
"SUO0T}Bd0[ sjusuwasoldwr uonoasiajul pasodoad ore srels anig
‘sarejysnoroy) pasodoid are saul onjg

'A310 39U} SPISINO SAIRJYSNOIOY) I8 SOUI] PAYSE(]

'A3J10 9} UIYIIM SATRJUYSNOIOY} SIe SoUl] PI[oS

pua3o]
g, = & el 1
,‘.‘h. . —‘ S - s Eer s . - eEs s =
. E o= o wme = mﬂ&l e —
g . 1" ' ¥ - QY HINUYd
i, - v . . s
3 ﬁ n €S  0-¥aanviHoH . 3\
i 7 :
2 nﬂl < - #
Y NS 9 = -
¥ .;._“...‘.\“ f o M . OOlll ln
% & S 8 % s &
. S 1
m ‘ X [} "
r L | - . W .
. » . i " 1E e
S ‘ | | ' .m . m [ u_uu
M a B 2 5 ; i
o =
s 2 S 2 1
L - ] . 1 Q Z
J- Y Y¥vd Ivaxoous ~ - Y e = 3 P | |
%r - o ;{y .3 - aY SYaNTm l
w - ; — X A= = I
7 o - - - S - | V- QY ANVHL3E
- : v = & = £
: <l = 2 z| H
g - Q¥ SYoN1 3 : S = < =
5 U7 uenstayg 5 L B ; z
o _ : 5 » A3 o | n
o i ’ . Mnu ﬁ\u.n» 4 o 8]
“m 3 - ]
g, ! q - L} il i
lGu. o t— -* - E.I i
Ly =y - AMd 531V1S3 . V- 1S NIVIA
= 1 Bl z
s} m.n..u ™
= " S
© =
g5 W3
N
_ . [ 7T] § ; 2
| D - QY 4HONONINNIM 3 2. P
aﬁ ‘Oonnll-nI-" w " "
. i
¥ :
. . > § o]
P o 2 - @¥ JAOYD 1S3H04 S e g
1 3 it w7 P
: H Li.._. Q_u ;D:_m T.E::C- M u
it o i . .a.w..
g. SUCSEENNNE S ] ] ¥ L_I m"

Jei( ueld aJ1ejy3noioy], I9)seN LI0Z el



EXISTING LAND USE PLAN

L EGEND
CITY PARK ] SINGLE-FAMILY - RURAL (2+ ACRES)
CITY OF LUCAS £ THOROUGHFARES 1 SINGLE-FAMILY - ESTATE (1.5+ ACRES)
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS X WATER TOWER v 0 SINGLE-FAMILY - LOW DENSITY (1 ACRE)
COLLECTOR STREET 1 MANUFACTURED HOUSING
FIGURE 4.2 o CITY HALL; POLICE DEPARTMENT - FUTURE THOROUGHFARE B COMMERCIAL
é [ 1 PUBLIC/SEMI-PUBLIC
FUTURELAND USE___ SCHOOL (O INTERSECTION ENHANGEMENT BN PARKS AND OPEN SPACE
== _=— 533253%2%@@5353'% 0 750 CEMETARY Toxas Local Govermment Code ALL FUTURE LAND USES WITHIN THE FLOOD ZONE ARE
== = m— 2 comprehensie plan lasirating utur land use shallcontain the olowing SUBJECT TO FLOOD PREVENTION ACTIONS SET FORTH BY
PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS 375 1 éOO clearly%isible staté)ment: "A con?preher{sive pla_n shall not 9onstitute zoningg THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
DECEMBER, 2004 GRAPHIC SCALE: 1INGH = 750 FEET ’ @ CH U RCH regulations or establish zoning district boundaries." AND/OR ZONING ORDINANCE.
<C
O

"1 9] sta&vro, JL < JJ I..CEY.ﬂ'.'Ti —

i .
|

- |

— |

]
CITY LIMITS I FOREST GROVE EAST J
S T . T S S R— b — -
l 0 ETJ STAL
h—-

FM 2786

STACY Rrp.

MAN O WAR
AFFRIMED

SECRETARIAT
SEATTLE SLEW

LAKE LAVON

N

N

L (RN R e
__' ™ RD ouT
— > HORSEMAN DR.
1378 == ——
A\ - FORES =
£ uj OREST GROVE ROAD = ' SROVE WESTHITS A
SRy —— - L) 1)
ni CO. RD. 2p = =
L@/ 2p° | 3 S NS ORIS PR
’>>S = u = {\ & I
< ) ™ <
® C\yr/ v ] = O
[ 2o S k T ndok g :
_— N = zéT\JOPNSDRm TREE| RQW DR o
o0 . ~ = S | O CITY LIMITS
dO~?9. —— S o % = & FORD LANE
ROCK RIDGE RD. / — S A E
- Z NORTHFORK /N. S J\E
= i ) B S 5 [
= i Rt ARD BlEaEE z LAST WINNINGKOFF
N / 18 = -
< . <
j % C EWING [CRT. = = > 5 OAK BROOK DR. EAST WINNINGKOFF _
6 } /(/ % & Z ]— hll—ll—ll
GRAHAM k\\ = . = = ——
TRAHAM [ANE Rﬁk\x | - = BRIARWICK DR. =
= -\\NOj THFORK|LA. = - = 5
. | (D)
//W ’RA < \ PROPOSED ; { = a
LEMENTARY < "
MOON \iSCHOOL // S - HIGHLAND
g A | =
2/ 0 ouT - 2 ondY JHURE TR /3 McMICCEN RD.
O o \II—II—II—I.—l" 4
o = ' BLUONDY JHUNE RD- g
e
L a /N 7 [ ! | 5y : ., SNIDER LN.
- . L A ) = c
« HIGH SCHOOL | o N o < 5
- : > 2 :
| _ : 7/ | e = f \
@) d < 2
Y/ ll 5 - : - E - | -
D &) 53 NEPY
A2 laé % ; 2 KEN \/ \ . AN !
5 — >4_ = DR / =
e ] O \ I
: || o : | ) a - _
_— L] (o)
2170 1 [ [ ] [LEESTATES Prwy. . = o ' x I
: = L < oREE 3 > . _
Lol L ] . , I : x| '
u ] BN g p e ” ISI = ((})) ; <§( - ‘
aOn ( Lol = - == 9 T
u \I i T “ Kf J /V
/ CREEK N \/ > /
LA N NEN B ER W / 2 \LIJ \\ ‘ 0%
f {f/ + > S~ I < | HRSTUN*HANW
| =~ | : il T =
i < |/ \ — ] HILLCREST pR. ;
! \ S a - 7 NORTHET™\R R
i J‘ % | S
N lllllll — - 8
FESTELLE LN. / :%f::::::::::

CRloE L
ON
r/

3
>_
e
)
<
)
EJTATES| RO. - |"J )

N\ h BI_OOIM ST,
LOVEJOY ¢ E=——— X
ouT L Re
5 \ SCHOOI_I l - < = ROHUNG_W\( oD g,
% - e : g % ROLLINGW( 5
5 g ﬂuf AVIS RENGH R ; . E :
LO) S ﬁﬁ = - 4
L0 = ’_\ /—Tﬁ 5 P - — ; Ll %
®) ™ Lol O <
= \ 2 x N / A 1
= \ D | ouT msl
R ! M : 1 24
3 - o | B i 7 NI
- = > o - CEDAR|BEN /
z KJ?/ 8 | — a ' D TRAIL o\
oz — 2 V', D
- _ - T A | / —
i 'E)I (ZD wn {BLUEMCON DR o - |t = = — g —
_| I I C). ) Q o O o
& L B 1 : . - " — (@)
—— — — —~ — T T A T - T a2
190 ETJ Y LIMITS = : EST LUCAS - L @ m 8
1 EE u [ u EE E——— II—II‘ ( ) §
O
=
PROPOSED T\ ERDE DR,
MIDDLE SCHOOL L

LAKE LAVON

CITY\LIMITS

LEWIS LN.

>

>
0
>

N

N

N\

\

REGAL WAY PL

CR252
CURTIS

CITY LIMITS
5
S0 S
- == - -
I:ﬂ }ll_ll_l- 0 Equestricm
Center

AN\

j SHEPHERDS

\ NS S
AN

STINSON

il

CHISHOUM TR.

POCO DR —

HA/RV@

=

RDADMOOR WAY
L

m

(; HIfOH DR _ | ‘MEFDFWFRFOT ?R' ‘ ‘
ESTADOS DR s NNA W

=

O

= AZTEC LN.
Ll
p:[\ s /
\ FM 2514 = — = E@X\ | N

b
<
=
—
[T
P
|
L
L
O

E

n

AN ITR.

SANTA Fg TR.

T~

TS
. L ET — T

LN




l(\l7,l_ T 1 ]

N

111 L[]

SNe~——1

NORT X E
TREATME

IANRANRRRRNNAN A

I

e
T i
:Hl 1] | g
EL Sy
/”g \;F
s
P

|
/4

/

/

l
==l

Iq
Y-
/)

[ L1
T
[
3
:
l A
A\
|

(g
LTI
[ 1
\
[TITIT] %
A
/
|
-
4
|

T [ |
::;-l 1 2 ———| |
] 1] |
1= o = [ i
i - ] B H--HH
4 : TT1 [ T[T 1] : )
i U—|L - = Lo —
1 1
{TTR2C I i
l1 l{lll}lll z = | - E
TTT 5 K A
O Vﬁ [ 1] P
g g S - 1
N 11 [N ==
- T Nl } lI N
— S
= . I
= AN
7 =
T
I 1||I|J|J&t
\l
SA T L. |
LEGEND M
F
HCITYOFLUCAS
DFloodplain /’2{

7
l:l Lake_Lavon_FEMA cw}/
—— Roads 1 3&"]%
R2  SINGLE FAMILY- RURAL (2+ ACRES) f ] :
R1.5 SINGLE FAMILY - ESTATE (1.5+ ACRES) I.I_J j

- R1 SINGLE FAMILY-LOW DENSITY (1 ACRE)

RHD SINGLE FAMILY- HIGH DENSITY 3 H l l | Il% [T1 [ | Ul T 4

|
LLL

__{l,__
il

74/ MH  MANUFACTURED HOUSING

¢ coumerciL WP | = e\

vc VILLAGE CENTER l | l l

N
] [

- PUBLIC / SEMI-PUBLIC | hlj ] ] ] | -r %J

. PARK AND OPEN SPACE - 1

T AT L LU

T H
THH L =
T T H

QLT

111

I

= —

N,

m
A [T

- 1 T T LT |
— I i IO

Proposed Land Use Map "A" DRAFT JULY 9, 2015

Engineering/Environmental/Construction Management Services
9601 White Rock Trail - Suite 204 Dallas, Texas 75238
1250 2500 (214) 341-1501 OFFICE (214) 341-1640 FAX

METROPOLITAN Texas Registered Firm # 6939
C I TY o F L U CA S Feet INFRASTRUCTURE www.metroinfrastructure.com

FUTURE L AND USE M AP 0 METROPOLITAN INFRASTRUCTURE, PLLC




City of Lucas Item No. 06

m\ City Council Agenda Request
X March 2, 2017

Requester:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster

IAgenda Item:]

Discuss and consider water projects and funding strategy to fund design and construction:
A) Water Fund projects for consideration and prioritization:

1. Elevated Water Tower, Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch Connection
and Pressure Regulating Valves

Parker Road Waterline Phase 2 (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa Fe Trail)
Parker Road Waterline Phase 3T (From Santa Fe Trail to Stinson Road)

Replace three existing pumps at the North Pump Station

Add new pump house at the North Pump Station with three 500 GPM pumps

Any additional water projects that Council may determine

Uk wmN

B) Discuss funding strategies including using unencumbered line item balances in the Capital
fund, unrestricted Water Fund reserves and work with SAMCO Financial Advisors on the
Notice of Intention Resolution to issue Certificates of Obligation and provide guidance to staff
on the specified amount required to fund the water system projects.

IBackground Information:|

During the past few years, the City Council has considered a variety of infrastructure projects.
At different times, staff has brought forward projects depending on the directions from the City
Council. With the near completion of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Capital Improvement
Plan, the timing is right to consider moving forward with high priority infrastructure projects.

THE WATER FUND PRIORITY WATER SYSTEM PROJECTS INCLUDE:

1. Elevated Water Tower, Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch Connection
and Pressure Regulating Valves:

By adding a 500,000 gallon elevated storage tank at the North Pump Station (alternate location to
consider would be west of City Hall), this will allow for the elimination of the lower pressure plane
increasing the manageability of the water system and increase water storage capacity. The in-line
pressure regulating values are necessary to maintain 60 to 80 pounds of pressure.

Estimated Cost (Design, Construction & Contingency): $2,190,844



City of Lucas Item No. 06

m\ City Council Agenda Request
X March 2, 2017

Parker Road Water Project Summary:

The Parker Road Waterline Project is needed to improve infrastructure and to accommodate the
TxDOT Parker Road widening, which is causing City of Lucas to abandon an existing six-inch
waterline along Parker Road. Parker Road 12-Inch Phase 1-1 (From Stinson Road to Enchanted
Way is funded in the current fiscal year 16/17 budget (CIP Engineering Priority number 1B).
Staff is not requesting funding for Phase 1 — Section 2, because it is developer driven. The
Parker Road Waterline Project has several phases as detailed in the attached map and the
following phases are priority contenders for funding:

2. Parker Road Waterline Phase 2:

The Parker Road 8-inch waterline (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa Fe Trail) Phase 2
replaces some of the thin-walled, six-inch waterline starting at Shepherds Creek Drive, south
along Lewis Lane, east through Kirkland Estates West subdivision, east along Indian trail, south
along Santa Fe Trail and east between 2 and 4 Santa Fe Trail in a new easement. BW2
Engineers were engaged in January 2017 in the amount of $33,500 from 21-8210-490-122 and
have started design work.

Estimated Cost (Construction & Contingency): $348,000 (design is funded 16/17 budget)

3. Parker Road Waterline Phase 3T:

The Parker Road 4-inch Temporary Phase 3T (from Santa Fe to Stinson Road). The four-inch
line will provide temporary, minimal service to three residential properties. Phase 3 will remove
and replace the four-inch line installed in Phase 3T when and if these properties are subdivided.
When subdivided, the property owner will be responsible for replacing the four-inch waterline
with at least an eight-inch waterline (the city may choose to fund upsizing to a 12 inch line).

Estimated Cost (Construction & Contingency): $159,503

4. Restore or replace) aging pumps at the North Pump Station

The existing three pumps in the North Pump Station pump house are 20 plus years old. A
detailed evaluation needs to be done to determine if the pumps need to be replaced or
refurbished. This project cost is based on replacing the pumps.

Estimate Cost: $153,821



City of Lucas Item No. 06

m\ City Council Agenda Request
X March 2, 2017

5. New Pump House — North Pump Station

Add new pump house at the North Pump Station with three 500 GPM pumps. This will provide
redundancy to move water from the ground storage tanks to the new water tower.

Estimated Cost: $432,575

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:|

Parker Road Waterline Projects Map
Single Pressure Plane Map

Timeline for Certificates of Obligation
Projected Fund Balance — Water Fund

APwnhE

[Budget/Financial Impact:|

Water Fund:

TOtal Priority PrOJECES ....cviiviiiiciecieceeeei ettt sttt n e $3,284,743
Less Unencumbered Balance in 21-8210-490-120/122..........cccovoieiiiieieenenieneeniesee e (142,964)
FUNAING NEBABT ..ot $3,141,779

Projected Excess Reserves After GASB 54 Requirements as of 9/30/2017:

WVAEEE FUNG. ...t e et e et e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e neeeeens $2,638,344

IRecommendation:|

Staff recommends the City Council consider 1) the use of existing budgeted FY 16/17
unencumbered funds to partially fund water and roadway projects; 2) use a portion of Water
Fund excess reserves to reduce the amount of debt necessary to fund priority roadway projects;
and 3) use of Certificates of Obligation to fund the unfunded portion of the selected priority
projects.



City of Lucas Item No. 06

M"M City Council Agenda Request

March 2, 2017

A) | make a motion to approve and authorize the following water projects to be initiated in
generally the following priority order:

1.

SARE A

Elevated Water Tower, Wiltshire Court to the North Pump Station 8-Inch Connection
and Pressure Regulating Valves

Parker Road Waterline Phase 2 (from Shepherds Creek Drive to Santa Fe Trail)
Parker Road Waterline Phase 3T (From Santa Fe Trail to Stinson Road)

Restore or replace pumps at the North Pump Station

Add new pump house at the North Pump Station with three 500 GPM pumps; and
(Any additional water projects that Council determined)

B) | make a motion to use the remaining balances in accounts 21-8210-490-120 and 21-8210-490-
122 in an amount not to exceed $142,964 to be used to fund the water projects approved in this

Item 6.

C) I make a motion to use Water Fund reserves in an amount not to exceed $141,779 to be used
to fund the water projects approved in this Item 6.

D) I make a motion to direct the City Manager to engage SAMCO Financial Advisors to assist on
the Notice of Intention Resolution to issue Certificates of Obligation up to $3,000,000 to fund
the water projects approved in this Item 6.



ios Dr

Lewis |

) sl

Existing 8-In

Parker Road Waterline Projects

Chishalm Trall

Rodarte Custom Drapes @

94 BIUES

Phase 2 (8-In)

Indian Trail

ie.] a4 ejues

py leaunap

Parker gy

1g uzsp

= rary

Caman Parg,

2

Highlang ur

-f?amd/;

Py uosupg

PY UOSUNS

i o

©
©

ap O

g xc

] 1

D 5«

X on 5
=
»

Lilyfield Dr

~ol®
Sara 6O

Fth Texas
n Centero

=2

Osage Ln

Existing
Southview

Overdrive Productions =

O Texas Lone Star Roofing 3

hiloh Dr _::\3 1
Janna Way .

°% Phase 1 - Section 1 (12-In) .
. 1
) g Phase 1 - Section 2 (12-In) I

= o =
Phase 3T (4-In) *& & g !
Yo =) e ?‘-----a 1
ke o i} ~—— 1
Parker Rd Parker Rd il PO 1
LAPS AUTO O m - ;:FR——----__________I
N i_) ©Kurt's Collision Center v arker Rd T Parker Rd

10 MBIAUINOS

Wriedt Boats &

Meai

Pyt



- 7S ‘ »
2 7‘| PN 5
L’ Existing
Single Pressure Plane

Storage

Tanks
= * 500,000 Gallon Water Tower Options .:‘ ==
’ With new pump station - e

[IlicasiEimp! g “ il
. . l W) N )
* Wiltshire Court Connector 4 Pu‘;‘:"p ;] {

* Restore Existing Pump Station o Station Restore Existing Pumps at i
. - North P Stati P T
* System Pressure Regulating Valves o \ orth Pump Station Ly 'n (

(Locations to be determined in the future) Vo : ™ ' . \ ‘.: ‘

[



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS (THE “CITY”)

$

*

COMBINATION TAX AND LIMITED PLEDGE REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION,
SERIES 2017 (THE “OBLIGATIONS”)

2 3 45 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

May
. . @
1 2 3]4]5 s 1 2 3 1

7 8 91011 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 910 2 3 4567 8

14 15 161718 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

11 12 13 14E16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

Monday, April 17, 2017

Monday, April 24, 2017
Monday, May 1, 2017

Thursday, May 4, 2017

Monday, May 8, 2017

Wednesday, May 10, 2017

Monday, May 15, 2017
Week of May 15™
Wednesday, May 17, 2017
Wednesday, May 31, 2017
Thursday, June 8, 2017

Thursday, June 15, 2017

Wednesday, July 13, 2017

SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc./(“SAMCO”) sends the City the Request for
Information (“RFI1")

City returns the RFI to. SAMCO
First draft of the NOS/POS sent to Bond Counsel

City Council meets to authorize the Notice of Intention Resolution
(“NOI") to issue the Obligations

Comments due on first draft of NOS/POS

First publication of the NOL in City’s paper of record

Second draft of NOS/POS sent to Issuer, Bond Counsel and Rating Agency
Comments due on the second draft of the NOS/POS

Hold Rating Call with the City and Rating Agency

Second publication of the NOI in City’s paper of record

Rating due back; Post NOS/POS to the Municipal Advisory Council

Post the NOS/POS to PostOS and email link to working group

Bids due at 12 noon (Central Time);

7p.m. City Council authorizes the issuance of the Obligations at a
competitive sale.

Obligations Closing; Funds wired to the City’s depository bank

SAMUOO CAPITAL MARKETS, INC,



City of Lucas

Projected Fund Balances Water Fund
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017

Beginning Reserve Balance September 30, 2016

Projected change in Fund Balance
Subtotal

Minus:

Restrictions:

Debt Service Payments

Customer Deposits

Reserve Transfer for New Position

Reserve Transfer for Capital Projects
Total Projected Unrestricted prior to GASB 54 requirement

Projected FY 16-17 Operating Costs

Six Month Reserve Requirement

Excess Reserves After GASB 54 Requirement

Operating Days
Months

$ 5,954,746
$ 23,186
$ 5,977,932
$ (375,000)
$ (239,250)
$ (31,086)
$ (876,117)
$ 4,456,479
$ 3,636,271
$ 1,818,136
$ 2,638,344
265

9



City of Lucas Item No. 07

m\ City Council Agenda Request
X March 2, 2017

Requester:  Councilmember Wayne Millsap
Public Works Director/City Engineer Stanton Foerster

IAgenda Item:]

Discuss and consider roadway projects, determine priority and funding strategy to fund design and
construction:

A) General Fund roadway projects for consideration and prioritization:

Winningkoff Rd Reverse Curve (design funded in FY 16/17)
Stinson Rd/W. Lucas Rd Intersection (design funded in FY 16/17)
Country Club Road/Estates Parkway Intersection

Winningkoff Road (Reverse Curve to Snider Lane)

Stinson Road South of Bridge

Blondy Jhune Road (West Bridge to Winningkoff Road)

Stinson Road North of Bridge (middle section)

Winningkoff Road (E. Lucas Rd to Reverse Curve)

Any additional roadway projects that Council may determine.

©CoNo~WNE

B) Discuss funding strategy including using unencumbered line item balances in the Capital fund,
unrestricted General Fund reserves and work with SAMCO Financial Advisors on the Notice
of Intention Resolution to issue Certificates of Obligation and provide guidance to staff on the
specified amount required to fund the roadway projects.

IBackground Information:|

During the past few years, the City Council has considered a variety of infrastructure projects.
At different times, staff has brought forward projects depending on the directions from the City
Council. With the near completion of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Capital Improvement
Plan, the timing is right to consider moving forward with high priority infrastructure projects.

GENERAL FUND ROADWAY PROJECTS (all inclusive) FOR CONSIDERATION AND
PRIORITIZATION:

1. Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve (design funded in FY 16/17) ......ccccccevvrnennee. $964,000
2. Stinson Rd/W. Lucas Rd Intersection (design funded in FY 16/17) ................... $453,000
3. Country Club Road/Estates Parkway INtersection...........cccocueveveenenieneeneseenen $350,000
4. Winningkoff Road - Reverse Curve to Snider Lane.........cccocvevvevvevvecnieennene $1,400,000
5. Stinson Road South Of Bridge.......cccueiiiiiiiiiiiie e $2,267,000
6. Blondy Jhune Road - West Bridge to Winningkoff Road ............ccccccvevveiennen. $2,700,000
7. Stinson Road North of Bridge (middle Section) ........c.ccooceeviiinnenienieneiiecenn $2,000,000



City of Lucas Item No. 07

m\ City Council Agenda Request
X March 2, 2017

8. Winningkoff Road - E. Lucas Rd to Reverse CUrVe........c.ccccoeevveveniesieeieennnn $1,900,000
TOAI COSE .ttt enas $12,034,000

Note: Cost estimates include design, construction and contingency unless otherwise noted.

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:|

1. Roadway Projects Map
2. Timeline for Certificates of Obligation
3. Project Fund Balance — General Fund

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

General Fund:

TOtal PrIOFLY PrOJECTS . ..ottt s $12,034,000
Less Unencumbered Balance in 21-8210-491-123..........cccooeiiieiieiiesie e (749,000)
FUNAING NEBABT ...ttt $11,285,000
Projected Excess Reserves After GASB 54 Requirements as of 9/30/2017:

GENEIAl FUNG........oiiiiiecicce ettt te e ne e e e $5,055,355
IRecommendation:]

Staff recommends the City Council 1) use existing budgeted FY 16/17 unencumbered funds to
partially fund roadway projects; 2) use a portion of General Fund excess reserves to reduce the
amount of debt necessary to fund roadway projects; and 3) use of Certificates of Obligation to
fund the unfunded portion of the selected projects.

A) | make a motion to approve the following roadway projects to be initiated in generally the
following priority order:

1. Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve (design funded in FY 16/17) ......cccccceevevennee. $964,000
2. Stinson Rd/W. Lucas Rd Intersection (design funded in FY 16/17) ................... $453,000
3. Country Club Road/Estates Parkway INtersection...........ccccceveviveresveesieernsnenn $350,000
4. Winningkoff Road - Reverse Curve to Snider Lane.........cccocvveieeniiinineniene, $1,400,000
5. Stinson Road South of Bridge.........cccceveieiiiiieie e $2,267,000
6. Blondy Jhune Road - West Bridge to Winningkoff Road ...........ccccccoevviienen. $2,700,000
7. Stinson Road North of Bridge (middle Section) ........cccccecvevvvieviveiesieseerie e, $2,000,000



City of Lucas Item No. 07

m\ City Council Agenda Request
X March 2, 2017

8. Winningkoff Road - E. Lucas Rd to Reverse CUrVe........c.ccccoeevveveniesieeieennnn $1,900,000
TOtAl COSE .. $

B) | make a motion to use the remaining balance in account 21-8210-491-123 in an amount not
to exceed $749,000 to be used to fund the roadway projects approved in this Item 7.

C) | make a motion to use excess General Fund in an amount not to exceed $ to be
used to fund the roadway projects approved in this Iltem 7.

D) I make a motion to direct the City Manager to engage SAMCO Financial Advisors to assist on
the Notice of Intention Resolution to issue Certificates of Obligation up to $
to fund the roadway projects approved in this Item 7.




o

sla 2 WONC:ee,Q P

~

w.o.  Roadway Projects A

N gl o g
\= = |5 :
S 3. Country Club/Estates < B X
- i S T Snider L
4 Intersection 3 - nhiaer Lane
Estates Phwy *g [l 4. Winningkoff Middle
< & -
-‘g Estates Parkway 3 S ’ Lyl
: z - S
z P4 Christian L
W Estoll

A\ J

W. Lucas Road

P W Lucas Rd Lucas Rd
\ Y
]
2 7. Stinson North A v
) B . : ; /
(middle section) ? ‘ =0
V 4
: TR
g2 3 S
g g E 2 D
2 = N *g 2 3
1 H 'S
l‘. w""va_ Q% < . a
| . (- S
| 5. Stinson South I} Q
. w0 n
| <
[= = .
( (95 B
| 5 Aztec Trall
el
ef,'l Parker Rd ‘



CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS (THE “CITY”)

$

*

COMBINATION TAX AND LIMITED PLEDGE REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION,
SERIES 2017 (THE “OBLIGATIONS”)

2 3 45 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

May
. . @
1 2 3]4]5 s 1 2 3 1

7 8 91011 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 910 2 3 4567 8

14 15 161718 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

11 12 13 14E16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

Monday, April 17, 2017

Monday, April 24, 2017
Monday, May 1, 2017

Thursday, May 4, 2017

Monday, May 8, 2017

Wednesday, May 10, 2017

Monday, May 15, 2017
Week of May 15™
Wednesday, May 17, 2017
Wednesday, May 31, 2017
Thursday, June 8, 2017

Thursday, June 15, 2017

Wednesday, July 13, 2017

SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc./(“SAMCO”) sends the City the Request for
Information (“RFI1")

City returns the RFI to. SAMCO
First draft of the NOS/POS sent to Bond Counsel

City Council meets to authorize the Notice of Intention Resolution
(“NOI") to issue the Obligations

Comments due on first draft of NOS/POS

First publication of the NOL in City’s paper of record

Second draft of NOS/POS sent to Issuer, Bond Counsel and Rating Agency
Comments due on the second draft of the NOS/POS

Hold Rating Call with the City and Rating Agency

Second publication of the NOI in City’s paper of record

Rating due back; Post NOS/POS to the Municipal Advisory Council

Post the NOS/POS to PostOS and email link to working group

Bids due at 12 noon (Central Time);

7p.m. City Council authorizes the issuance of the Obligations at a
competitive sale.

Obligations Closing; Funds wired to the City’s depository bank

SAMUOO CAPITAL MARKETS, INC,



City of Lucas

Projected Fund Balances General Fund
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017

Beginning Reserve Balance September 30, 2016

Projected change in Fund Balance
Subtotal

Minus:

Restrictions:

FY 15-16 Capital Outlay Reserve

FY 16-17 Capital Outlay Reserve

Reserve Transfer for Trail Project

Municipal Court and Cable Peg Fees

Total Projected Unrestricted prior to GASB 54 requirement
Projected FY 16-17 Operating Costs

Six Month Reserve Requirement

Excess Reserves After GASB 54 Requirement

Operating Days
Months

$ 7,398,056
$ 415,828
$ 7,813,884
$ (100,000)
$ (50,000)
$ (11,000)
$ (68,674)
$ 7,584,210
$ 5,057,710
$ 2,528,855
$ 5,055,355
365

12



Item No. 08

City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request
March 2, 2017

ol

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

IAgenda Item:|

Executive Session:

The City Council may enter into Executive Session as permitted under the Texas Government
Code, Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property
within the City of Lucas.

IBackground Information:|

NA

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:]

NA

|Budget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:|

NA

NA



City of Lucas Item No. 09

Council Agenda Request
March 2, 2017

ol

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

IAgenda Item]

Reconvene into open session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive Session.

IBackground Information:|

NA

IAttachments/Supporting Documentation:]

NA

IBudget/Financial Impact:|

NA

IRecommendation:|

NA

NA



	00 - 03-02-2017 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	March 2, 2017
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, March 2, 2017 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As aut...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders...
	Consent Agenda
	Presentations
	Public Hearing
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.
	Certification



	01 - Citizen Input
	02 - Community Interest
	03 - Consent Agenda
	03a - 02-16-2017 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	February 16, 2017
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.


	04 - Lovejoy ISD Presentations cs
	05 - Comp Plan CS
	05aa - Ordinance 2017-03-00850 Approving 2017 Comprehensive Plan
	05ab - Final Version - Comp Plan
	05b - Waste water Master Plan
	05c - Water System Plan
	05d - thoughfare plan
	05e - Lucas_12_30_Land_Future
	05f - AFuture Land Use-Draft
	06 - Water Funding v3.1LegalFinal
	06a - Parker Road Water Projects
	06b - Single Pressure Plane Projects
	06d - Timeline for Certificates of Obligation
	06e - Projected Fund Balance - Water Fund
	07 - Roadway Funding v3.1LegalFinal
	07a -  Roadway Projects
	07b - Timeline for Certificates of Obligation - streets
	07c - Projected Fund Balance - General Fund
	08 - Executive Session cs
	09 - reconvene from Executive Session cs

